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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Member(s)

YATHARTH HOSPITAL AND TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LTD.
(FORMERLY YATHARTH HOSPITAL AND TRAUMA CARE SERVICES PVT. LTD.)
JA 108 DLF Tower A Jasola District Centre South Delhi DL 110025

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 15" Annual Report together with the audited
Statement of Accounts for the financial year ended 31t March, 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial performances for the year under review along with previous year’s

figures are given hereunder:
Particulars for the Year ended 315t March, 2022

Sl. PARTICULARS CURRENT PREVIOUS
No. YEAR YEAR
(2021-22) (2020-21)
(INR: Million) (INR: Million)
1. Net Sales /Income from Business Operations 2985.90 1647.28
2. Other Income 12.71
5.10
3. Total Income 2998.61 1652.38
4, Less financial cost 119.62 116.68
5. Less other expenses 2144.14 1230.21
6. Profit before Depreciation 734.84 305.49
7. Less Depreciation 131.65 125.21
8. Profit after depreciation and Interest 603.19 180.28
9. Less Current Income Tax 173.53 31.50
10. Less Deferred Tax -6.26 9.66
11. Less Other Tax 15.04 -15.93
12. Net Profit after Tax 420.87 155.05
13. Paid Up Share Capital Dividend (including
Interim if any and final) - -
14. Net Profit after dividend and Tax 420.87 155.05
15. Amount transferred to General Reserve 420.87 155.05
16. Balance carried to Balance Sheet
17. Earnings per share (Basic) 6.42 9.47
18. Earnings per Share (Diluted) 6.42 9.47

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

The Company recorded a turnover of Rs. million 2985.89 during the 2021-22 year as against Rs.
Million 1647.27 in the previous financial year and the Company has earned profit after tax of




Rs. million 420.87 as compared to the profit earned by the company of Rs. million 155.05 in the
previous financial year.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI LODR regulations and applicable Accounting
Standards along with all relevant documents and the Auditors’ Report form part of this Annual
Report. The Consolidated Financial Statements presented by the Company include the financial
results of its subsidiary companies, associates and joint ventures.

RESERVES

The Board of Directors of your company has decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves
for the year under review.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your company, after considering holistically the relevant
circumstances and keeping in view the company’s dividend distribution policy, has decided that
it would be prudent, not to recommend any Dividend for the year under review.

WEBSITE

The Company has maintained its website https://yatharthhospitals.com.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no
dividend declared and paid last year.

SHARES
PAID UP AND AUTHORISAED SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company as on 31t March 2022 was Rs. 115,00,00,000/-
(Rupees One Hundred Fifteen Crore Only). During the year company has allotted bonus shares
to the existing shareholders. Therefore, the Paid-Up Equity Share Capital of the Company on
315t March, 2022, was increased to Rs. 65,51,69,000/- (Rupees Sixty Five Crores Fifty One Lakh
Sixty Nine Thousand Only).

a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review

b. SWEAT EQUITY
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review

c. BONUS SHARES
49137675 Equity share has been issued as Bonus Shares to the existing shareholders
during the year under review.




d. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN
The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees

e. SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL RIGHTS
The Company has not issue any Equity shares with Differential Rights.

DIRECTORS

There has been following changes taken place in the Board of Directors during the Financial

Year ended 315t March, 2022.

Sr. DIN Name of Director Date of Date of Status

No. Joining Cessation
1 | 01818736 | Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi 28.02.2008 - No change
2 | 01792886 | Dr. Kapil Kumar 28.02.2008 - No change
3 [ 01792934 | Dr. Neena Tyagi 28.02.2008 | 05.08.2021 Resigned
4 | 01777738 | Dr. Manju Tyagi 28.02.2008 | 05.08.2021 Resigned
5 [09322889 | Mr. Yatharth Tyagi 15.09.2021 Appointed
6 | 07333674 | Mr. Mukesh Sharma 21.02.2022 Appointed
7 | 09440514 | Dr. Sanjeev Upadhyaya | 21.02.2022 Appointed
8 | 01890754 | Dr. Illa Patnaik* 21.02.2022 Appointed

*Note: Dr. Ila put her resignation by mail on 01.08.2022

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have Joint Venture and Associate Company but it has two Subsidiary
Companies. Details of which is enclosed as annexure-AOC-1:

Subsidiary [2(87)(i)&(ii)] -

Subsidiary [2(87)(i)& ii)] -
Subsidiary [2(87)(i)&(ii)] -

AKS Medical & Research Centre Private Limited (WOS)

Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Pvt. Ltd. (WOS)
Sanskar Medica India Limited (WOS)

DEPOSITS

During the year, the Company has not accepted any deposits from its members in terms of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Acceptance of Deposit Rules 2014.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

Extract of annual return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule
12 of the Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexure-I
and is attached to this Report.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year, 12 (Twelve) meetings of the Board were convened. The time gap between two
consecutive meetings of the Board did not exceed one hundred and twenty days.




LOANS, GUARANTEE AND INVESTMENT

The Company has provide corporate guarantee to its subsidiary companies for Rs.
75,56,00,000/- in AKS Medical & Research Centre Pvt. Ltd. and for Rs. 56,00,00,000/- in
Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Pvt. Ltd. during the year under review.

Further the Company has made an investment of Rs.8,92,07,730.00 (Rupees Eight Crore Ninety
Two Lacs Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty only) in the form of purchase of Equity share
capital in its subsidiary AKS Medical & Research Centre Pvt. Ltd. Further the company has
acquired Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Pvt. Ltd. on 18.02.2022 by
purchasing of all equity shares i.e. 40,10,000 (Forty Lacs Ten Thousand Equity Shares only).
Now the said company has been wholly owned subsidiary of Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care
Services Ltd.

Further that the Company has not given any loan nor provided any security in connection with a
loan to any person under section 186 of the Companies Act 2013.

PARTICULARS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

There were no contracts or arrangements entered into by the company in accordance with
provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, the company has complied with
the provisions of AS-18 by making the disclosure in the notes to accounts, forming part of the
Financial Statements attached as Annexure-II.

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The provisions of Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies {The Companies (Accounts)} Rules, 2014 are given as below:

A) Conservation of energy

The provisions of Section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Conservation of
energy applies to our Company. Proper steps have been taken by the Company for the optimal
utilization of energy like installation of LED Bulbs, low electric consuming air conditioning, auto
sleep mode of systems if isolate for few minutes and approach to use 5 star rated appliances
and equipments etc.

(B) Technology absorption

The efforts made towards technology absorption and the benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product development and adoption of state of the art
technology.

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

There was no foreign exchange inflow and outflow during the financial year under review.




PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are now applicable to
our Company as there are no employee, other than executive directors who are in receipt of
remuneration not less than Rs. million 10.20 p.a. if employed throughout the financial year and
not less than Rs. Million 0.85 p.m., if employed for a part of financial year.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION
AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee is applicable to the Company and hence the Company has adopted a policy relating
to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under
Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has
appointed Mr. Manoj Kumar Pandey, Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice
Number: 9655) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

The Company has annexed to this Board Report as Annexure-MR-3, a Secretarial Audit Report
given by the Secretarial Auditor.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The provisions of Section 149 pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors has been
complied by your Company.

STATUTORY AUDITOR

Appointment of M/s R. Nagpal Associates, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 002626N) as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their remuneration and in this regard pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, if any, read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors)
Rules, 2014, (including any statutory enactment or modification thereof), consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded to appoint M/s. R. Nagpal Associates., Chartered
Accountants, (Firm Registration No.002626N) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold
the office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Annual
General Meeting to be held for the Financial Year ending 315t March, 2026 on such
remuneration including out of pocket expenses and other expenses as may be mutually agreed
by and between the members, Board of Directors and the Auditor of the Company.”




INTERNAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of section 138(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. Singh RK & Associates,
Chartered Accountant (Certificate of Practice Number: 532096) to undertake the Internal Audit
of the Company. Audit Report for the FY 21-22 enclosed

COST AUDITOR

pursuant to section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 6(2) of the companies (Cost
records and Audit Rules) 2014 M/s Subodh Kumar & Co. Cost Accountant (Registration No.
104250) to undertake the Cost Audit of the Company. Audit Report for the FY 21-22 enclosed

AUDITORS REPORT

The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors’ Report are self-explanatory and
do not call for any further comments. The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Company believes that CSR initiatives has played pivotal role in improving the lives of the
communities and society at large. Your Company has been actively working on Infrastructure
development, health, education, Livelihood and Employability, Social & cultural growth.

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board has constituted a Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee and also has in place a CSR Policy. New CSR policy has been
adopted on 21.02.2022.

The Composition of CSR Committee is as under:

S. No Name Designation
1. Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi Chairman
. Dr. Kapil Kumar Member
3. Dr. Sanjeev Upadhyaya Member

The Annual Report on CSR activities as required to be given under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014 is attached in Annexure-lil.

Total amount to be spent on CSR was Rs. Million 1.76/- but Rs. Million 3.00 have been spent as

there was some old unspent amount i.e. for Rs. Million 0.50 was standing. Further the Company
is actively engaged in CSR activities.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS

Your Company has adequate internal control system commensurate with the nature and size of
its business. Internal audit function is in place, which endeavour’s to make meaningful
contributions to the Company’s overall governance, risk management, and internal controls.




The function reviews and ensures sustained effectiveness of Internal Financial Controls by
adopting a systematic approach.

The Company has devised systems, policies and procedures, which are currently operational
within the Company for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business, safeguarding
assets of the company, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and management information system.

The company is process to appoint Internal Auditor to review and evaluate the effectiveness of
the existing processes, controls and compliances. The Internal Auditor shall make periodical
presentations on audit observations, including the status of follow-up.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

The Company has acquired a new hospital in Orchha, Madhya Pradesh on 18.02.2022. The
acquired company possess 305 bedded super specialty hospital in the name of M/s Ramraja
Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Private Limited. The said hospital has been
operational since 10.04.2022.

Further Company has been converted into public limited on 18.11.2021 with the prospect of
opening for public issue. Company has filed DRHP on 31.03.2022 and got the approvals from
NSE, BSE and SEBI. Currently company is working to finalise UDRHP for the said proposed issue.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy.

DETAIL OF FRAUD AS PER AUDITORS REPORT

No fraud has been noticed or reported in the Company by its employees and officers during the
Financial Year 2021-22.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of the Company
hereby states that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 315t March 2022, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures.

b) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and
of the Profit and Loss of the company for that period.




c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a Going Concern Basis.

e) The Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and such system were adequate and operating effectively.
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Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates,
consultants, and various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your
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By order of the Board of Directors
For Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Ltd.

Dr Ajay Kumar Tyagi Dr. Kapil Kumar

(Director) (Director)

DIN: - 01792886 DIN: - 01818736

R/o SP Villa-17, Jaypee Greens R/o Villa-05, ATS One Hamlet
Greater Noida - 201310 Sector-104, Noida - 201304

Date :04.08.2022
Place : Greater Noida West




Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company

Annexure |

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022

(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.] CIN U85110DL2008PLC174706

2.| Registration Date 28/02/2008

3.| Name of the Company Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited

4.| Category/Sub-category Non Government Company
of the Company

5.| Address of the JA 108 DLF Tower A Jasola District Centre Delhi -110025
Registered office & cs@yatharthhospitals.com
contact details 0120-6811236

6.| Whether listed company | No

7.1 Name, Address & Link Intime India Private Limited
contact details of the C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Registrar & Transfer Mumbai 400 083
Agent, if any. Tel: +91 22 4918 6200

II.  (A): PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

H S. No.

products / services

Name and Description of main

NIC Code of the
Product/service

% to total turnover of the
company

K

Hospital Activities

86100 100%




(B): Particulars of its holding, Subsidiary and Associate Company

S. No. | Name of Company Relation Pursuant to Companies
Act, 2013
1 AKS Medical and Research Subsidiary Section 2(87)(i)&(ii)
Centre Private Limited
2 Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital | Subsidiary Section 2(87)(i)&(ii)
& Trauma Centre Pvt. Ltd.
3 Sanskar Medica India Limited Subsidiary Section 2(87)(i)&(ii)

lll. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning | No. of Shares held at the end of the % change
Shareholders of the year year during the
year
Demat | Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 0| 9796500| 9796500/ 59.81| 39186000 0[39186000] 59.81] © al
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of o off
b) Central Govt.or
State Govt.
c) Bodies 0 of
Corporates
d) Bank/Fl 0 0 0 0 o 0 of
e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of o off
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 0| 9796500/ 9796500/ 59.81| 39186000 0[39186000] 59.81] © al
(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 of
b) Other 0 0 0 0 0 ol
Individuals
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0||
d) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 of
e) Any other... 0 0 0 0 0 of




Total Shareholding
of Promoter
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 0| 9796500 9796500 59.81| 39186000 0(39186000 59.81 0 0l
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 Y o o ol
b) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o of
C) Central govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 Y o o °||
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 Y o o °||
e) Venture Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o of
Fund
f) Insurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of o off
Companies
g) FIIS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 OII
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 of
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds
i) Others (specify) Y 0 0 0 0 0 0 of o off
SUB TOTAL (B)(1):
(2) Non
Institutions
a) Bodies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (0]
corporates
]) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O||
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o O||
b) Individuals 0 6582725| 6582725 40.19 26330900 0[26330900] 40.19] 0 of
c) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o of
Hindu Undivided 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o off
Family
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): | © 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o ol
Total Public 0 6582725 6582725 40.19( 26330900 0(26330900 40.19 0 (0]
Shareholding
(B)= B)Y(N)+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total
(A+B+C) 0 16379225| 16379225 100| 65516900 0(65516900 100 0 |
B) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTER-
S Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year | % change
No. Name year in Share-




No. of % of %of Shares No. of % of %of Shares holding
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged / during
Shares of | encumbered Shares of | encumbered | the year
the to total the to total
company | shares company | shares
1. Dr. Ajay 6755400 41.24 0 27021600 4124 | 0 0
Kumar Tyagi
2. Dr. Kapil 3041100 18.57 0 12164400 1857 | 0 0
Kumar
Total 9796500 59.81 0 39186000 59.81 (0 0
C) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING
S Particulars Shareholding of the year Cumulative Shareholding
No. during the year
No. of shares | % of total No. of shares | % of total
shares of shares of the
the company
company
At the beginning of the year 9796500 59.81 9796500 59.81

2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment /transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

Allotment of Bonus Issue in proportion to 1:3 (For one
equity share Three Bonus shares allotted on 01.03.2022)

3 At the end of the year

39186000

59.18

12292595

59.81

D) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS,
(iv) PROMOTERS & HOLDERS OF GDRS & ADRS)
S. Name of the | At the beginning of | At the end of the | Cumulative Month Reasons
No. | Shareholder the year (i.e. | year (i.e. | Shareholding wise (for
01.04.2021) 31.03.2022) during the year Increase/ | increase/
No. of | % of No. of | % of No. of | % of iDnecheré::(:e ?eecrease
Shares total Shares total shares total : 8-
holding allotment
Shares of Shares of Shares of -
during / transfer
the the the
the year / bonus /
company company company sweat
equity
etc)
1 Neena Tyagi 1754900 10.71 | 7019600 10.71 | 2202039 10.71 5264700 Bonus




Manju Tyagi 2881050 17.59 | 11524200 17.59 | 3615126 17.59 8643150 Bonus
Vimla Tyagi 935750 5.71 | 3743000 5.71 | 1174174 5.71 2807250 Bonus
Krishna Tyagi 505725 3.09 | 2022900 3.09 634581 3.09 1517175 Bonus
Prem Narayan 505300 3.09 | 2021200 3.09 634048 3.09 1515900 Bonus
Tyagi
E) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
\Y SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
S.No. | Name of the | At the beginning | At the end of the | Cumulative Increase
Directors /| of the year (i.e. | year (i.e. | Shareholding /
KMP 01.04.2021) 31.03.2022) during the year Decrease
(Designation) | No. of | % of No. of | % of No. of | % of in Share
Shares | total Shares total share | total holding
Shares Shares S Shares during
of the of the of the | the year
compa company company
ny
1 Dr. Ajay 6755400 41.24 | 27021600 41.24 20266200
Kumar Tyagi
(Chairman
and WTD)
2 Dr. Kapil 3041100 18.57 | 12164400 18.57 9123300
Kumar (MD)
3 *Dr. Neena 1754900 10.71 | 7019600 10.71 5264700
Tyagi
4 *Dr. Manju 2881050 17.59 | 11524200 17.59 8643150
Tyagi
5 Mr. Yatharth 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tyagi (WTD)
6 Mr. Amit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Kumar Singh
(CEO)
7 Mr. Pankaj 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Prabhakar
(CFO)
8 Mr. Ritesh 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mishra
(CS & CO)

*Note: Dr. Neena and Dr. Manju have resigned form the Board from the position of Director w.e.f.

05.08.2021, now they are shareholders only.




F) INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment-

Secured Loans

excluding Unsecured Deposits Total
. Loans Indebtedness

deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of 0
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 914.79 2.48 0.00 917.27
ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 914.79 2.48 0.00 917.27
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
* Addition - - - -
* Reduction 214.24 2.48 0.00 216.72
Net Change -214.24 -2.48 0.00 -216.72
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
i) Principal Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total (i+ii+iii) 700.55 0.00 0.00 700.55

XI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

Remuneration to Director:

SN. | Particulars of

Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager/Director

Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi

Dr. Kapil Kumar

Mr. Yatharth Tyagi

Gross salary

12.00

12.00

12.00

36.00

(a) Salary as
per provisions
contained in
section 17(1)
of the Income-
tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of 0
perquisites
u/s 17(2)
Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in 0
lieu of salary

Total Amount




under section
17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option 0 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0 0
- as % of
profit
5 Others, please 0 0 0 0
Total (A) 12.00 12.00 12.00 36.00
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CS CFO Total
Amit Kumar Ritesh Pankaj
Singh Mishra Prabhakar
1 Gross salary 1.32 0.78 0.48 2.58
(a) Salary as per provisions NIL NIL NIL
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s NIL NIL NIL NIL
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary NIL NIL NIL NIL
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3 | Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
4 | Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profit NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others, specify... NIL NIL NIL NIL
5 | Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total 1.32 0.78 0.48 2,58

XIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
the Description | Penalty / [RD / NCLT/ | if any (give
Companies Punishment/ COURT] Details)
Act Compounding
fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL NIL | NIL




Punishment NIL NIL NIL
B. DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL
Compounding | NIL NIL NIL

By order of the Board of Directors

For Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Ltd.

Dr Ajay Kumar
(Director)

Tyagi

DIN: - 01792886
R/o SP Villa-17, Jaypee Greens

Greater Noida - 201310
Date :04.08.2022
Place : Greater Noida West

Dr. Kapil Kumar
(Director)
DIN: - 01818736

R/o Villa-05, ATS One Hamlet
Sector-104, Noida - 201304




Head Office :
B-1/1018, VASANT KUNJ,

3, | R. NAGPAL ASSOCIATES TELEPHONE : 0114 1082626

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS EMAIL : rnacal@gmail.com

Branch :

E-537, Ranjeet Nagar
Bharatpur-321001 (Rajasthan)
Mobile : 9711031327

Email : arpittanejai@@rnaca.in

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited (Formerly Known as Yatharth
Hospital & Trauma Care Scrvices Pyvt. Litd.)

Repore on the Audit of the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS fnancial statements ol Yatharth
Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited (Formerly Known as Yatharth Hospital &
Trauma Carve Services Pve. Ltd.) (“the Company™). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31st March, 20220 the Statement of Profit and Loss. Statement of changes in cquity and
Statement of cash flows lor the year ended 3 1st March 2022, and notes 1o the standalone Ind
AS linancial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

In our optnien and Lo the best of our information and according to the explanations given Lo us.
the aloresaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the  Indian
Accounting Standards preseribed under seetion 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules. 20150 as amended. ("ind AS™) and other accounting principles
gencrally accepted in India. of the state ol altairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its
Profit. total comprehensive income. changes in equity and its cash Hows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specilied under
scction 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
(urther described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
[inancial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Lithics issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the cthical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the inancial statements under the
provisions ol the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Lthics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sullicient and appropriate o provide a basis
[or our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon

The Company's Board of Dircetors 15 responsible for the other information. The other
mlormation comprises the information mcluded in the Managemient Discussion and Analysis.
P ] e o - 1 . 1 3 X e o "‘- 3 3 “‘ 255 4 1 ‘--' it 3 .
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Corporate Governance and Sharcholder’s Information. but docs not include the consolidated
lnancial statements. standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the standalone [nd AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form ol assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility
i5 1o read the other information and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

I1, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 1o report in this
regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Beard of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in scetion 134(5) ol
the Companies Act. 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements  that  give a tue and  fair view of the financial position. financial
performance, changes in equity, and cash lNows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. tncluding the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act,

This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asscts of the Company and for preventing
and detecting [rauds and other irregularitics: selection and application of appropriate
mplementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls. that were operating elfectively for ensuring the accuracy and compleleness
of the accounting records. relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the standalone Tnd
AS financial statement that give a true and Fair view and are free from material misstatement.
whether due to [raud or crror.

[n preparing the standalone Ind AS Iinancial statements. management is responsible lor
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable.
matiers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
managerent either intends to liquidate the Company or 1o cease operations. or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Thosc Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
Process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are ta obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are Iree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. butis nol a guarantee that an andit conducted
i accordance with SAs will always deteet @ material misstatement _when it exists.

Misstatements can arise lrom fraud or error and are considered mai??'ffl dividually or in

s




the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o nfluence the cconomic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the linancial statements.
whether due to fraud or ercor. design and perform audit procedures responsive o those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis (or
our opinion. The risk ol not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery.
intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

. Lvaluate the appropriatencss ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s usc of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists.
we are required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related disclosures in the
Inancial statements or, il such disclosures are inadequate, o modily our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. Hlowever. future events or conditions may cause the Company (o ccase o
continue as a going coneern,

. valuate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and cvents in a manner that achicves fair presentation.

Matcriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS Nnancial statements
(hat. individually or mnaggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions ol a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone Ind AS hinancial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work: and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identilied
misstatements in the standalone Ind AS hnancial statcments.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings that we identify during our
audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complicd with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
retationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence.
and where applicable, related safcguards.

Other Matter
Audited Standalone hnancial statements of the Yatharth Hospital & ‘Trauma Care Serviees
‘ate Limited) (the

March 31. 2019

[imited (formerly known as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Pri
Company) as at and for the year ended March 31. 2021, March 31, 202
,.f',' ; 4




were prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP. which had been approved by the Board of
Direclors at their meeting held on 29 July 2021, 12 December 2020 and 25 Scpt 2019
respectively. In accordance with the ICDR Regulations, read with the Guidance Note on
Report in Company Prospectuses (Revised 2019) issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. the Restated Special Purpose Financial Statements [or the year ended
March 31, 2021, March 31. 2020, March 31. 2019 were prepared after incorporating Ind AS
adjustments (both re-measurements and reclassifications) to be made in accounting heads
from their Accounting Standards valucs as on the date of wansition i.e. April 01, 2018
following accounting policies (both mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions availed
as per Ind AS 101) consistent with that used at the date of transition to Ind AS and Reaudited
Restated Special Purpose Ind AS Financial Statements were approved by the Board of
Directors of the company on 25" March 2022.

Now the Standalone Ind AS financial statements includes IFive Balance Sheets i.c transition
date opening balance sheet as at April 1. 2018, March 31, 2019, March 31, 2020. March 31,
2021 March 31, 2022, Four Statement ol Prolit and l.oss, Statement of changes in equity and
Statement of cash Mows for the year ended sheet as at March 31, 2019, March 31. 2020, March
31,2021 March 31, 2022 and nofes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements. including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. including Note
No. 33 explaining First time adoption of Ind AS financial statements and reconciliation thetreol
with the previous Indian GAAP hinancial statements,

Our opinion is not qualificd in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Scction 143 (3) of the Act. we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which (o the
best of our knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so (ar as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in equity
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
ol account.

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. read with Rule
& - {_-‘ * ]
7 of the Compariies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis ol the writlen representations received from the directors as an 31
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the dircelors
is disqualificd as on 317 March. 2022 (rom being appointed as a director in terms ol
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

\O-

) With respeet Lo the adequacy of the internal [inancial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness ol such controls. refer (o
our separate Report in “Annexure A7 Our report expresses an unmodilied opinion
on the adeguacy and operating clfectiveness ol the Company’s_i
controls over financial reporting. :
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With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 10 the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our inlormation and according to the explanations given to

us:

I

1l

v,

V.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 41 to the
standalone linancial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts [or which there were any material foresecable losses.

There are no amounts that were due for being transferred (o the Investor
Education and Protection IFund by the Company,

{a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belicl, no Tunds (which are matenal either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either [rom borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company (6 or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™., with the
understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall. whether, directly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or cntities
dentilied 1 any manner whatsoever by or on behalfof the Company (“Ultimate
Beneliciaries™) or provide any guarantec. security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries:

(b) The Management has represented, thal, to the best of its knowledac and
behell no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
becn received by the Company from any person or entity. including forcign
entity ("Funding Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling
or otherwise. that the Company shall. whether. divectly or indirectly, lend or
imvest in other persons or entities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on
behallof the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee.
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriale in the cireumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (if) of Rule 1i(e).
as provided under (a) and (b) above. contain any material missiatement.




2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143¢11) of the Act. and on the basis of such checks
ol the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we give in “Annexure 37 a statement on the
matters speetfied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For R. NAGPAL ASSOCIATES
Chartercd Accountants

Firm Registration No. 002626N

Place: Noida 2en 200 Ao my DA Y 32y
Dated: 04.08.2022



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph [ (I} under *Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub-scetion 3 of Scetion 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We bave audited the internal financial controls over (inancial reporting of Yatharth Hespital
& Trauma Care Services Limited (Formerly Known as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma
Care Serviees Pvt, Ltd.) (“the Company™) as of March 31. 2022 in conjunction with owr audit
of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible Tor establishing and maintaining internal {inancial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Nolte
on Audit ol Internal [Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
mainicnance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including adherence to company’s policics.
the safeguarding of its asscts, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness ol the accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable fInancial
information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility s to express an opinjon on the Company's interpal lnancial controls over
linancial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over IFinancial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
preseribed under Section 143(10} of the Companies Act. 2013, 1o the extent applicable o an
audit of intcrnal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated cffectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
mternal financial controls system over linancial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over linancial reporting, assessing the risk that o
material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
mternal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement. including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone [nd
AS inancial statements. whether due to Traud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 4
basis lor our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Mecaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over linancial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone Ind AS financial statements lor external purposes in accordance with gencrally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal Anancial control over linancial reporting
mcludes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance ol records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet the transactions and dispositions of the asscts of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 10
permit preparation ol Tinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use.
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material elfect on the [inancial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting.
including the possibility of coliugion or improper management override ol controls, material
misstatements duc to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any
evaluation of the internal Ginancial contrels over linancial reporting to future periods are subject
(o the risk that the internal Inancial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal linancial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
cllectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
cstablished by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants ol India.

For RONAGPAL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No. 062626N
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A ROHIT MEHRA)
P /f;é's"’\' Partner
Membership No. 093910
Place: Noida GDinv . 220920 ofong 6 A2
Dated: 04.08.2022




ANNEXURE referred to in paragraph 2 of our report of even date to the members of
Yatbarth Hospital & Trauma Care Serviees Limited (Formerly Known as Yatharth
Hospital & Trauma Care Services Pvt. Led.) on the accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31st March 2022.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according 1o the information and
cxplanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(i) (a) {(Ay  The Company s maintaining proper records showing full particulars.
including gquantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and
Lquipment.

(B)  The Company does not have any Intangible assets, therclore the Clause
3@ (B) is notapplicable,

(b) A substantial portion of the Property. Plant and Equipment  have been
physically verified by the management during the year and (o the best ol our
knowledge and information given (o us, no material discrepancics were
identificd on such verilication.

() The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its properties, plant and equipment. therclore
the Clause 3(1)(d) is not applicable,

{e) As informed, the Company. no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the company lor bolding any benami properly under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thercunder.
thercfore the Clause 3{i)(e¢) is not applicable.

(1) (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by
the Management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

(by  The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 2 3 crore.
in aggregate. during the year. (rom banks or (inancial institutions on the basis
ol security of current assets and quarterly returns or statements (iled by the
company with such banks or Anancial institutions are in agrecement with the
books of account of the Company

(iit)  The Company has made investments in, companies and granted unsecured loans to
subsidiaries. during the year. in respect of which:

(a) During the year the company has given corporate guarantee {or loan taken by
its subsidiary companies AKS Medical & Research Centre Private Limited and
Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Pvt Lid.




(iv)

(v)

(vi)

A) The aggregate amount of guarantee as at the end of the year was Rs. 1.390.60
millions, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date with respeet 10 such
loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiarics, joint ventures and
associates Rs. 1,154, 10 millions on the reporting date;

I3) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect o such loans or advances and guarantecs or security (o
partics other than subsidiaries. joint ventures and associates was NIL:

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and conditions of the
grant ol all loans and advances in the nature guarantees provided are note prejudicial
to the company’s interest:

(¢) In respeet of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule ol repayment
of principal and payment of interest bas not been stipulated, but the repayments or
receipls arc regular,

(d) There are no amounts overdue on the reporting date:

{¢) No loan or advance in the nature of loans granted which has fallen due during the
year. has been renewed or extended ov [resh loans granted to settle ol existing loans
given 1o the same parties:

(1 The company has extended loan amounting to Rs. 268.34 million to its subsidiary
company M/s Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Pyt Ltd and Rs.
1.03 Mitlion to its fellow subsidiary, M/s Sanskar Medica India Limited cither
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment
Which amounts to 91.93% thereol to the total loans granted, aggregate amount of
loans granted to Promoters, related parties as defined in clause {76) of scetion 2 of
the Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. in respect
ol Joans. investments. guarantees. and security. given the provisions ol sections 183
and 186 ol the Companies Act have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly. the
provisions ol clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specitied by the Central Government under
section T48(1) ol the companies Act 2013, We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the company pursuant to the companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules
2014, as amended preseribed by (he Central Government under sub section (1) of
section 148 of the Companies Act 2013, and are of the opinion that. prima lacic, the
prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate and complete. The cost audit report for the FY 2021-22 was vel (o be
concluded at the thme of submission of our report.




(vi1)

{viii}

(ix)

(xi)

{a) As per records produced belore us and according to the information and
explanations given o us the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory ducs applicable to it like. Income-lax cte, and other material statutory dues
applicable to 1t with the appropriate authorities, and there were no arrcars of such dues
at the end of the year which have remained outstanding lor a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) As per records produced before us and according to the information and
explanations given to us there are no dues of [ncome-tax, Sales-tax, Wealih tax, Service
Tax, Customs duty. Execise Duty, Value Added Tax or Cess which bave not been
deposited on account ol any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrccorded income that have heen
surrendered or disclosed as income during the yvear in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 ol 1961).

{(a) In our epinion and according o the information and explanations given to us.
the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks at the
end of the year, The Company did not have dues to financial institutions. government
and o debenture holders

{h) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial
mstitution or government or any government autherity at the end of the year.,

(c) The Company has applied term loans for the purpose for which the loans were
oblained.
() On an overall examination of the (inancial statements of the Company, funds

raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the vear lor long-
term purposcs by the Company.

(¢} On an overall examination of the financial statements ol the Company. the
Company has not taken any tunds from any entity or person on account of or 1o mect
the obligations of its subsidiaries,

(n ‘The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledae of securities
held in its subsidiaries,

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotiment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and

fair view of the financial statements and as per the informati d explanations given
!




ixii)

(x1i)

(x1v)

(xv1)

{(xvil)

(xvii)

{(xiIx)

by the management, we report that no fraud by the company or any [raud on the
Company by its oflicers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
ol our audit and clause 3(x)(b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicable.

In our opinion. the Company 1s not a nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of’
clause 3(xi1) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Based on information and explanations given to us by the management, all transactions
with the related partics are i compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial Statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opimen the Company has an adequale internal audit  system
commensurate with the size and the nature of 1ts business;

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit. issucd
to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

[n cur opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us. the
company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or person
connected with him which is covered by Scction 192 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(xv} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the mnlormation and explanations given o us. the
company is not required to be registered under scction 45 1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly. the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable 10 the Company.

The company has not incurred cash loss during the current vear as well as in the
immediately preceding financial vear.

The previous auditor bad resigned as they did not have the Peer Review -level-1

certification necessary lor the auditor of a company approaching financial market. and
further there were no objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditor.

On the basis of the financial ratios. ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
asscts and payment of financial liabilities. other information accompanying the
lnancial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions.
nothing has come o our attention, which causes us 1o believe that apy malerial
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of mecting its liabilitics existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall duc within a period of one year from the balance sheel date. We. however. state that
this i3 not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company, We further state that
our reporting 1s based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. will get discharged by the Company.:

s and when they
fall due.




{xx)  There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) at the
vear end. Accordingly. reporting under clause 3(xx}(a) and (b) ol the Order 15 not
applicable for the year.

For RONAGPAIL ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

. Partner
//(§ ‘embership No. 093910

Place: Noida - S Apr
P, . . i )
Dated: 04.08.2022 M2 2eTan ) G BOWYTD S U iy




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE BERVICES LIMITED
Pormerly Known on FPathorth Baspital & Traoma Carg Services Prt. Lid.
CIN:U85110DL2008PLC 174706
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(Rs. In Millions)|

Particulars Note No. Figares as at Figures as at
' March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Figures as at
March 3%, 2020

Figures as at  Figures as at 1st
March 31, 2019 April, 2018

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 1,167.69 1,246.21 1,344.15 1,460.72 467.40
{bl Capital work in progreas 3 - - - - B31.50
(c} Right-of-use of assets 32 56.12 75.63 96.21 116.97 -
{d| Financial Assets
(i} Investments 4 463.83 341,92 33061 2B0.61 185.43
(i} Other Financial Assets 5 9.06 &.21 5.00 1.59 14.57
e} Other Non Current Assels ) 48.59 53.80 60.02 3192 17.80
Total non-current assets 1,756.20 1,723.76 1,835.99 1,§94.91 1,516.76
Current assets
{a) Inventories ¥ 23.52 27.39 25.76 2261 20.31
(bl Financial Assets
(i} Trade recejvables g 763.34 316.72 167.85 119,27 86.73
[lijCash and cash equivalents 9 14.90 6.20 12.84 2.7G 57.01
[iif) Bank Balance other than (i above 10 3.40 1.5¢ 1.42 1.31 1.36
o) Current Tax assets (Met} 11 - 18.06 45.95 25.67 14.86
14} Other Current assets 12 303.33 21.01 8.45 10.79 10.84
‘Fotal current assets 1.108.49 390,98 262.28 182.35 191,10
TFotal Assets aBS 8.69 —El 114.74 =2&1.')98‘27 2.0‘?'[:_26 1,707.87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Enquity Share Capital 12 655.17 163.79 163.79 163.79 158.97
() Other Equity 14 461.94 529,77 406.32 353.49 309.16
Equity uttributable to the owzers of the company 1,117.1L €93.56 §70.11 557.29 468.13
Nou-current liabilities
(a) Financial labilities .
{i} Borrowings 15 700.55 917.27 882.10 995.15 917.55
{ia) Lease Liabilities 32 36.74 54.76 73.02 90,46 -
{#] Other Minancial liabiiities (net 1o 56.10 56.10 3A7.40 - -
{bl  Provisions 17 7.97 G4l 0.23 0.23 0.18
{c) Deferred tax liabilities {Net] 18 49.45 39.57 16.85 13.10 14.77
Total non-¢urrent liabikities 8%0.81 1,068.11 1,009.70 1,098.94 932,51
Current liabllities
{a} Financlal liabilitics
{i} Borrowings 19 391.42 112.64 236.53 187.69 167.00
[ia} Lease Liabilities 32 19.12 15.26 17.44 1666 -
{if] Trade payahles 20
{a] Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and 22.81 - - - -
Small Enterprises
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other thar 138.08 128.28 121.60 125.40 60,94
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
(fii} Cther financial liabilities 21 101,71 7168 9B.24 63.06 68.39
() Other current liabilities 22 155.54 22,16 44,59 25.22 10.89
[c} Provisions 23 62.10 0,08 0,04 0.00 0.00
Total current liabilities 890.78 353.08 $18.45 421.03 307.23
Total Equity and Liabilitles 2,858.69 2,114.74 2,098.27 2,077.26 1,707 87
Summary of signilicant accounting policies 1

ASSETS
Non-curreat ausets

The nate nos. 1 to 54 are integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For R.Nappal Associatexs
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

-
On behalf of the Boerd of Directors

Dr, Ajay Kumar Tragi

oT Director
M.No.093910 DIN:OET92886
Place: Noida
Dated: 047082022
Ritesh Mishra

Co. Secretary & Compliance Officer
M. Ho S11G6

Yatherth Hospitel & Trauma Care Services Linrited

LY

\

Dr. Kapit Kumar
Pirector
DIN: 01818736

A

Pnl af Prabhakar
Chief Financial Officer
AGFFP293TA




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

Formerly Known as Yatherth Hospital & Trauma Cara Bervices Prt. Ltd.

CIN:U85] 10DL2008PLC1 74706

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

{Rs. In Millions)

Figures for the  Figures for the year

Figures for the Figures for the

Particulass Nota No  year ended March  ended March 31,  yesr ended March  year ended March
31,2022 2021 31,2020 31, 2019
[ Revenue from operations 24 2,085.90 1,647.28 1,327.05 1,018.33
Il Other income 25 12.71 5.10 1.40 2.29
III Tetal income (I+1I} 2,998.61 1,652.38 1,328.46 1,020.72
[V Expenses:
Cost of Material Consumed 26 561.55 303.99 « 25238 194,86
Employee beneﬁt_s EXpETSE 27 611.62 34063 245.04 204.70
Finance cost 28 119.62 121.20 139.89 62,91
Depreciation and amortization expenses 29 - 13165 144.25 168.72 83.81
(Other expenses an 940.98 555.66 499.60 423.14
Total expenses 2,395.42 1,474.74 1,306.63 969.42
V Profit f{Loss) before exeeptional items and tax (FIE-TV]) 603.19 177.64 21.83 51.3Q
VI Exceptional items [Net) [Gain)/Loss - -
Vil Profit / {Loss) before tax (V-V) 603.19 177.64 21,83 $1.30
VI Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 173.53 31.50 5.22 12.08
(2) Income tax of earlier years . . _ R
{3MAT credis availed f reversed 15.04 2.25 5.22) (12.08)
(4) Deferred tax (net) {6.26) 20.46 8.97 10.40
Total tax expenses 182.32 54.21 897 10.40
IX Profitf{Loss} for the period [VI-VII] 420.87 123,43 12.85 40.90
X Qther comprekensive income
(&)} ltems that will net be reclassified to profit or loss - - _
{iijlnceme tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
{b} (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 377 0.02 {0.04 0.04
{iilincome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss {110} ©.01) 0.01 (0.0
Other comprehensive income for the period 2.67 0.02 .oy 0.03
Total comprehensive income [ 1X+X )[Comprising Profit / [Loss) -
Xl and Other Comprehensive Income for the period) 423.56 123.45 12.83 40.93
XiI Earnings per equity share
{1} Basic 31 6.46 1.88 0.20 .64
2) Diluted 6.46 1.88 0.2¢ .64
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The note nos, | to 54 are integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For R.Nagpal Associates On behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited

Pirm Registration Neo.002626N

/

{ Dr, Ajay Kumar Tyagi

Partner Director
M.Koe.093910 DIN:01792886
Place: Noida
Dated: 0470872022

Ritesh Mishra

Co, Secretary & CompHance Officer
M. No 51166

Dr. Kapil Kumar
Pirector
DIN: 01818736

Pankaj Prahhalkar
Chief Financial Offlcer
AGFPP293TA




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
Formeriy Koown as Tatherth Hospltal & Trauma Care Gervices Fet. Lid.
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31, 2022

|E3, In Milticnx)

M. No S1166

AGFPP2937TA

Pipures for the Figures for the Figures for the Figures for the
Particulars year ended March | year ended March | year ended March |year ended March
31, 2022 31, 2021 31, 2020 31, 2019
A. [Net cash Row from operating activities
Profit before tax and exceptional items 603.19 177.64 21.83 51.30
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation and Amsortisation expense 13165 144.25 168.72 8331
Finance costs 119.62 121.20 139.89 62.91
Interest [ncome 15.36) {0.32) 0.30) .73
Operating profit before working capitul changes £48.60 442,77 330.13 197.29
Working cspital adjustments
(Increase) fDecrease in Trade receivabies {446.62} {148.87) (48.58) (32,54}
(Increase) fDecrease in Inventories 3.87 11.62) {3.15) 2.31}
{Increase] { Decrease in Financial Assets and other Current and Non-Current Assets 1257.114) (7.55} [26.08) (4.18]
[ncrease (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities & Cther Current and Non-Current
Liabilities 196.03 [23.62) 85.16 T6.46
Increase (Decrease} in Short Term and Long Term Provisions 11.32 011 0.11 0.09
Cagh generated from operations 356.08 261,22 337.59 234.80
[ncome tax [paid)/Refund {niet) {93.42) {3.600 125.500 [22.89}
Net cash inflow from [used in) operating activities—- A" 26Z.67 Z57.02 31200 ZI1.51
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress and
capital advances and capital creditors 156.38) (23.72) {31.29) 1362.54
Investment in Subsidiary {126.91 (1131} 150,600 (95.19)
Interest and Dividend Income 5.86 0.32 .30 0.72
Investment in bank deposits having original maturity of more than three months
(1.90} 0.09) ©.11 0.05
Net cash used in investing activities-----'B' 1179.33) 13G.50) {51.20) (456,55}
Cash flow from Financing activities
Proceeds from Long term borrowings and short term borrowings
[nterest & financial charges paid * (119.62) (121.20) {139.89) 62.91)
Net Movement of Long Term Borrowings and short term borrewings 6206 88.73) [64.21) 98,29
FPayment of lease Labilitiy [17.17) 117.44) {16.66) 107.12
Issue of share including premium - - - 48.23
Ret cash used in financing actlvities---'C’ [74.73) (227.37) 220.75) 190.72
Met h]crease,’{Decmése] in cash or cash equivalent {A+B+C} 8.61 16.55) 10.14 (54.31)
Cash & cash equivalent at the commencement of the period 6.29 12.84 2.70 57.01
Cush & cagh equivalent at the end of the perdod 14.90 6.29 12.84 2.70
Recenciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents {note no. 9) 14.90 6.29 12.84 2.70
For R.Nagpal Aszsocistes On behalf of the Board of Directors
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limiled
./ \
bl
Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi , ., Kapil Kumar
Py ; Director f he ctor
M.No.093910 DIN:01792886 i OLB18T736
Place: Noida
DPated: 04/08/2022 AN A W\
N
Ritesh Mishra P:Sbnj Prabhakar
Co. Secretary % Compliance Officer  Chiel Finaneiul Officer




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
1 iy Koown v Tetbarth d & Traxms Care Servicas Pty Li6.)

Statement of chanpes in Equity

[R5, Tn Millions)
. : Qther Equity attribotable to
Particulars Equity Bhare Securities Premium Retuined Comprhensive sharcholders of the
Crpital Account Earnings Income company
Balance at Ist Apxil, 2018 153.97 133.20 186.19 - 478.36
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due te Prior peried Errors - - (10.23) - 10.23;
Restated Balances at the Beginning of the year 158.97 1332.20 £75.96 - 468.13
Issue of Sharc Capital 4,82 43.40 - - 45,23
Burplus in the statement of profit and ioss transferred during the year : ; 40.90 ; 40.9¢
Total Comphensive Income for the clurent year - - - 0.03 0.03
Balance at 31st Macch, 2019 163.79 176.60 216.56 Q.03 557,29
Particulars Bquity Shave Sectrities Premi Retalned (,nmm.l_‘u_, Equitr ot “3":::"
Capital Aceount Earnings Iocotme
Balauce at 1st April, 2019 163.79 176.60 216.86 T 002 557.29
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior pericd Etrors - - - - -
Restated Balances at the Beginning of the year 163.79 176.60 216.66 ¢.03 557.29
Surplus in the statement of profit and Joss transferred during the year : ; 12.85 _ 12.85
Total Comphensive Income for the current year - - - {0.03] [0.03)
Balance at 31lat March, 2020 163.79 176.60 229.71 0.00 570.11
b
Particalars Bquity Share  Securities Premium Retained o Other Equity attei “3.”:;:“
Capltal Account Earaings Incomze o com
Balance at 13t April, 2020 163,79 176.60 229.71 0.00 5?0‘11
Changes in Equity Share Capita! Due to Prior period Errors - - - . -
Restated Balances at the Beginning af the year 163.79 176.60 229.71 0.00 570,11
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss transferred during the year ; _ 123.43 R 123.43
Tokal Comphensive Income for the current year - - - 0.02 0.02
Balance af 31st March, 20321 163.79 176,60 353.14 Q.02 693,56
Other Equity attribztable to
Equity Share Securities Premi Retained 1 arb i
Particulars Capital Acoount Earniags Co: =P " . shareholders of the
Balance at 1st Aprif, 2021 163.79 176.60 35314 - 0.02 693.56
Changes in Equity Share Capital Due to Prior period Evrors - - - - .
Restated Balances al the Beginning of the year 163,79 176.60 a53.14 002 693,56
Surplus in the etatament of profit and loss transferred during the year . 420-.37 . 42087
Total Comphensive Income for the current year - - - 2.67 2.67
ement of defined bene(it liabitity (net of tax} - - - . .
[ssue of Bonus Shares 491.38 (176.600 1314.77) - -
Ealance at 3]st March, 2022 655.17 - 459,24 Z.70 1,117.11

For Reserves sec Note No-14

Significent Accounting Policies
The ac ing notes are i I part of the financial statements.

As per our rcplort of even date attached to the financial statement

For R.Nagpal Associates
Chartcred Mcountants
fTatjon No, GO2626N

ﬂhmhip No. 093910

Place: Noida
Dated: 04 /08 /2022

For and on behalf of the Board
Yatharth Hospital & Tranuma Care Services Limited

Dr. Ajay Eumar Tyagl

Director
DIN:01792886

Ritesh Mishra

S

Co. Secretary & Compliance Officer

M. No 51166

i

h

Dr. Kapil Kumar
Pirector
DIN: 018158736

Pa Prabhajar

Chisf Financial Officer

AGFPP2937A



Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited
(Formerly Known as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Pvt. Ltd.)
CIN:U85110DL2008PTC174706

Significant Accounting Policies for Standalone Financial Statements as at 31st March, 2022,

1.

1.1

1.2

103

Significant Accounting Policies

About the company

Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited {"The Company") (Formerly
Known as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Pvt. Ltd.} was incorporated in
New Delhi on 28th February 2008. The Company has its registered office at JA, 108
DLF, Tower A, Jasola District, Centre South Delhi 110025. The company has its
corporate office at Sector 1, Greater Noida {(West), Uttar Pradesh 201308,

Nature of Operations

The company is engaged in the business of providing healthcare services, operating
hospitals and other allied services, as may be required for the provision of healthcare
services. The Company has one hospital each in Noida and Greater Noida.

Basis of preparation

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements:
The Company has adopted accounting policies that comply with Indian Accounting

standards (Ind AS) notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 16
February 2015 under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, as required by the
relevant applicability provisions prescribed in the same notification. Accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements. The financial statements referred hereinafter have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements and instructions of Schedule III to the Companies
Act 2013, amended from time to time applicable to companies to whom Ind AS

applies.

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Ind
AS prescribed. The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity
with Indian Accounting Standard requires the Company to exercise its judgment in
the process of applying the accounting policies. It also requires the use of accounting
estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements. These estimates and assumptions are
assessed on an ongoing basis and are based on experience and relevant factors,




1.4

circumstances and presented under the historical cost convention on accrual basis

of accounting.

Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue from medical and healthcare services comprises of income
from hospital services and sale of pharmacy items.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the company expects to be entitied in exchange for those goods or services.

Income from hospital services comprises of fees charged for inpatient and outpatient
hospital services. The performance obligations for this stream of revenue include
accommodation, surgery, medical/clinical professional services, food and beverages,
investigations and supply of pharmaceutical and related products.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the fixed consideration
adjusted for components of variable consideration which constitutes discounts,
estimated disallowances and any other rights and obligations asspecified in the
contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected (if any) from
customers and deposited back to the respective statutory authorities.

Revenue is recognised at the point in time for the outpatient hospital services when
the related services are rendered at the transaction price. With respect to the
inpatients hospital services the revenue is recognized at the transaction price on
such patients when the hospital services are rendered completely. ’

Revenue from sale of pharmacy and food and beverages (other than hospital
services), where the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time, is
recognised when the control of goods is transferred to the customer.

The company applies the most likely amount method or the expected value method
to estimate the variable consideration in the contract. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by thenumber of
volume thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount is used for
those contracts with a single volume threshold, while the expected value method is
used for those with more than one volume threshold. The company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration thatcan be included in the transaction price and recognised as

revenue.

Contract assets represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services
rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance
sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.




1.5

Other Income

Interest on deposits, loans and debt instruments are measured at amortized cost.
Interest income is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR Is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial
liability. Other Income includes rental income, being recognized on due basis and
sale at cafe and canteen to employee and others; which is recognized at a point of

sale.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at original cost of acquisition
including incidental expenses and all the borrowing costs, which are directly
attributable to the acquisition of assets and installation of the concerned assets. PPE

are shown net of accumulated depreciation.

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property,
Plant and Equipment recognised as of April 01, 2018 {date of transition to Ind AS)
measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its deemed cost
as at the date of transition.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if
any.

Depreciation has been charged as per new rules as provided by The Companies Act,
2013. For PPE acquired during the year, depreciation is provided on pro rata basis
from the date the assets were put to use. The carrying amount of a property, plant
and equipment is de-recognised when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or on disposal.Assets taken on long term lease are amortized over the balance

period of lease.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on written down value
method based on estimated useful life of assets as prescribed in part C of schedule II
to the Companies Act, 2013.




Assets Useful Lives
Building 60 Years
Flant and Machinery 13-15 years
Furniture and Fittings 8 years
Air-Conditioners 10 years
Electric installations 10 years
Office Equipments | 5 years
Vehicles 8 years
Computers 3 years

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases, if any, is
depreciated over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain
. ownership at the end of the lease term.

. Freehold land is not depreciated. Lease hold land is depreciated over the balance
period of lease, once the building or any other asset erected over such period of land

is put to use.

Based on the planned usage of certain specific assets and technical assessment, the
management has estimated theuseful lives of Property, plant and equipment as

below:

- Individual asset not exceeding Rs. 5,000 have been fully depreciated in the
year of purchase.

- Leasehold improvements are amortised over the period of the lease or
estimated useful life, whichever is shorter.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if

appropriate.




1.6

Taxes on Income

Tax Expenses:
Income Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax charge or credit,

Provision for current tax is made with reference to taxable income computed for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared by applying the tax
rates as applicable.

Current Tax-Current Income tax relating to items recognized outside the profit and
loss is recognized outside the profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income

or in other component of equity)

MAT- Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as current tax. The company recognizes MAT credit available as an
asset only to the extent there is convincing evidence that the company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT Credit
is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT
Credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit
Available in respect of Minimum Alternate Tax under the Income Tax Act, 1961, the
said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of Profit and Loss and shown
as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT Credit Entitlement”
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company
does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the sufficient

period,

Deferred Tax:-Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purpose at reporting date i.e. timing
difference between taxable income and accounting inceme. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred
income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expensein the period
that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income
tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can

be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed as at each balance sheet
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will not be available against which deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are




1.7

1.8

recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the unused tax credit to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the losses will be
utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in

equity.
Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes asubstantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Allother
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

l.eases

Right of Use Assets

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset, on a lease by-lease basis, to measure
that right-of-use asset an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
balance sheet immediately beforethe date of initial application.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised.

Initial direct costs incurred and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the recognized right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment test.

Lease Liabilities

The Company recoghise a lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease
payments include fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on a lease by lease
basis. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate

implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
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1.10

1.11

Short-term Leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of Inventories
comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Closing stock cost is
determined on FIFO basis.

Employee Benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits i.e. wages and salaries,
bonus, incentive and annual leave etc. expected to be paid in exchange forthe service
rendered by employees are recognized asan expense except in so far as employment
costs may be included within the cost of an asset during the per;od when the

employee renders the services.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund andpension contribution is a defined
contribution scheme and is recognized as an expense except in so far as employment
costs may be included within the cost of anasset.

Gratuity is a defined benefit obligation. The liability is provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year. The actuarial valuation is

done as per Projected Unit Credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to profit or loss through OCI in the peried in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Foreign Exchange Transactions
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR which is the

Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded on initial recognition at the spot rate
prevailing at the time of thetransaction.

At the end of each reporting period
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. Monetary items (Assets and Liabilities) denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair

value was determined.

’ Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated Exchange differences on monetary items are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

1.12 Fair Value Measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the

asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

. Level ] — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities
.+ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
+ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on &
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
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1.13

levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets & liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and the risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Financial Instrument
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity

and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a)

b)

Recognition
The company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Measurement
i} Financial assets

A financial asset is measured at

- amortised cost or
- fair value either through other compressive income or through profit or

loss

ii} Financial liability
A financial liabilities is measured at

- amortised cost using the effective interest method or
- fair vatue through profit or loss.

iii) Initial recognition and measurement:-

All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value at initial
recognition, plus or minus, any transaction cost that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not at fair value through profit or loss.

iv) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets as subsequent measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) as the case may be.

3
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i)

i)

dj

Financial liabilities as subsequent measured at amortised cost or fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets

Trade Receivables:-
Trade receivables are the contractual right to receive cash or other financial

assets and recognized initially at transaction value. Subsequently measured at
amortised cost (Initial fair value less expected credit loss). Expected credit loss
is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
company and all that the company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfall},
discounted at the effective interest rate.

Equity investments -Investment in Subsidiary, associates & Joint
venture

Investment in Subsidiary, associates & Joint venture is carried at cost as per
Ind AS27

Al other equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair vaiue.

Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration

- recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103

applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument by- instrument basis. The classification is made on

initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at Fair value to
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment,
However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair
value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Cash and cash Equivalents:-

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, highly liguid investments that are readily convertibie into known

>




amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Impairment of Financial Assets:-

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL)
model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss.
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL,
unless there has been a significant increase incredit risk from initial
recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of
expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

i) Trade payables:
Trade payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to

the Company prior to the end of financial year and which are unpaid.
Trade payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is
not due within 12 months after the reporting period or not
paid/payable within operating cycle. They are recognised initiaily at
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortzsed cost using the
effective interest method.

ii) Borrowings:
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the
establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of

the loan.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material
provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on
demand on the reporting date, the company does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and
before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand
payment as a consequence of the breach. '
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iii) Equity Instruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest

in the assets of company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

g Derecognition of financial instrument: _
The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109, A financial
lability for a part of a financial liability} is derecognized from the company's
balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

h) Offsetting of financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

i) Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Comparny are those contracts that
require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in actordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are
recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined asper impairment requirements of IND AS 109 and the amount
recognised less cumulative amortization.

1.14 Operating cycle:-

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time
between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

1.15 Earning Per Share

The Earning per share is computed in accordance with the IND AS 33. Basic
earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year




1.16

bj

1.17

1.18

outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the

effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation
that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settie the obligation. A contingent Hability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities, if material,
are disclosed by way of notes and contingent assets, if any, is disclosed in the notes
to financial statements. :

Contingent liabilities, which according to the management are not expected to
materialize are not recognized in the financial statements are disclosed in the notes
to the accounts. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in financial

statements.

A provision is recognized, when Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of
which a reliable estimate can be .made for the amount of obligation. The expense .
relating to the provision is presented in the profit and loss net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pretax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks.

Segment Reporting

The company is mainly into the business of rendering hospital services. Other
services like sale of medicine etc are ancillary to the main services and thus the only
business segment, in terms of IND AS 108 and therefore noseparate reporting under

‘Segment Reporting’ is required
Cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or
expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The Cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are segregated




1.19 Impairment of Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for properties previously
revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to Other Comprehensive Income (OCI}.
For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any
previous revaluation surplus.

For assets other than goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment as at each Balance Sheet date and when
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each
CGU (or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at
each Balance sheet date at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
{or a cash-generating unit} is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset {or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or Loss.

Current and non-current assets and liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities maturing with-in the time period of operating cycle
which at present is I year are considered current assets or liabilities. All assets and
liabilities, not being current are considered noncurrent assets or liabilities.

Expenditure during construction period:-

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets and treated as
capital work in progress and upon commissioning of project the assets are
capitalised and transferred to appropriate category of PPE. At the point when an
asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to appropriate category of PPE. '

1.22 All figures reported are in Rupees Millions unless otherwise stated.




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARF, SERVICES LIMITED
{Formesly Known as Yatharth Hospital & Tranma Care Berviees Pvt. Ltd.)
2. Property, Plant & Equipment

[Rs. In Millions)

Leage Hold Plant & Furniture & Office
Particulars Land* Buildings Machinery Fittings Equipments  Vehicles Total
Cost as at 1=t April, 2018 (A) 44.4]1 31649 332.20 5.63 104.02 3067 835.42
Additons 62.73 695,52 210.07 8.21 70.65 1G.00 1,057
Additions through business combination - - - - - - -
Disposals - - - .
Other Adjustment 13.37 - - - - - 13.37
Cost ag at 31st March, 2019 (C) 120.51 1,014.0L 542.27 13.83 174.67 40,66 1,905.95
Cost as at Ist April, 2019 120.51 1,014,010 542.27 13.83 174.67 40,66 1,905.96
Additions - - 22,19 - 8.75 2.54 31.39
Additigns threugh businesa combination - - - - - Co. .
Disposals - - - . - . .
Cost ax at 31st March, 2020 (E) 120.51 1,014.01 564.37 13.83 181.42 43.21 1,937.35
Cost as at Ist April, 2020 120.51 1,014.01 264.37 13.83 181.42 43.21 1,937.33
Additions - - 8.40 - - 17.32 25.72
Additions through business combination - - - - - - -
Disposals - - . - - - -
Cost as at 31st March, 2021 (@] 120.51 1,014.01 572.76 13.83 181.42 60.53 1,963.07
Cost as at Ist April, 2021 {4) 120.51 1,014.01 §72.76 13.83 181.42 60.53 1,963.07
Additions - - 13.65 - 2.28 16,45 32.38
Additions through business combination - - - - -
Disposzals - - - - - - -
Cost as at 31st March, 2022 (1} 120,51 1,014.01 586.42 13.83 183.70 76.98 1,295.45
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Depreciation as at 1st April, 2018 (B) - 74.99 198.40 4.43 74.88 15.32 I68.02
Depreciation 1L.41 20.07 36.20 1.04 12.32 6.17 TT22
Disposals - - - - - - -
Accumulated Depreciation as at 31st March, 2019 {D) 1.41 95.06 234.60 5.47 87.20 21,49 445.23
Accumulated Depreciation
Accumulated Depreciation as at ist April, 2019 1.41 95.06 234.60 5.47 87,20 21.49 445,23
Depreciation 1.41 24.62 65,87 2.64 36,84 6.59 147.96
Disposals - - - - - - -
Accumulated Depreciation as at 31st March, 2020 {F) 2.82 139.69 300,47 8.11 114.03 28.08 593.20
Accumuiated Depreciation as at 1st April, 2020 2.82 139.69 300.47 8.11 114.03 28.08 593.20
Depreciation : 1.41 42.46 53.33 1.81 17.97 6.60 123.67
Disposals - - - - - - -
Accumulated Depreciation ag at 31st March, 2021 (H) 4.23 182.14 353.80 9.92 132.00 34.76 716.86
Accumulated Depreciation as at 1st April, 2021 {B | 4,23 182.14 353.50 0.2 132.00 34.76 716.86
Depreciation 1.41 40.39 44.61 1.22 12,59, 10.67 110.9¢
Disposals - - - - - - -
Accumulated Depreciation as at 31st March, 2022 (J) 5.65 222.54 398.41 11.15 144.58 45.43 827.76
Net Carrying Amount
As at 1st April, 2018 (A-B) 43.00 208.42 286.00 4.58 91.7¢ 24.50 467.40
As at 31st March, 2019 [C-Dj 119.10 818.95 307.67 8.36 §7.48 19,18 1,460.72
As at 3ist March, 2020 (E-F) 117.68 874.33 263.90 3.72 67.39 15.13 1,344.15
As at 31st March, 2021 {G-H} 116.27 831.87 218.96 3.91 49.42 25.77 1,246.21
As at 31st March, 2022 (-0} 114.56 791.48 185.00 2.09 30.12 31.58 1,167.69

*Leaschold Land is on perpetual lease period for 90 Years




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
(Fermerly Known as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Put. Ltd.)

Notes to Financial Statements

3 Capital Work In Progress

Capital Work in Progress ageing Schedule

As at 31st March, 2022

(Rs. In Millions}

Amount in CWIP for a period of -~
Less than 1 More than
CWIP Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
Praject it progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 More than
CWIP Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
Project in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2020
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 More than
CWIP Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
Project in progress - - ) - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
As at 31st March, 2019 '
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 More than
CWIP Year 1-2 Years 2.3 Years 3 Years Total
Project in progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at 1st April, 2018
Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 More than
CWIP Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
Project in progress 286.56 374.84 131.76 38.40 831.56
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

Ty Hoowa s 5, Houpdtel & Teewma Caro Sarvices Pot, Lid.)

Rotes to finencial statements

{Rs. In Millions|

Note
No.

Particnlurs

As at March 31,
2022

As at March As at March As at March As at April

31, 2021

a1, 2020

31, 2019

1, 2018

4

Investments

Investments {n Equity Ingtzrements
Investment in Subsidiery Companies - at cost

Unquoted
AKS Medical and Research Center Put, Lid.

20,714,727 (16,635,727 as at 31st March 2021, 16040452 as at 21st March, 2020, 13,408,591
a8 at 31at March, 2019 and as 9,917,152 at 1st Aprit, 201B) equity shares of Rs 10/- each

Sanskar Medica ndia Limited
5,622,950 (5,622,950 for 31st March 2021, 3ist March 2020, 31st March 2019 and 1,882,950

as at 1st April 2018) equity shares of Ra 10/- each

Ramraja Multispeciality Hespital & Trauma Centre Private Limited
4,010,000 (Nil for 31st March 2021) equity shares of Rs 10/- ¢ach

374.90

36.23

37.71

2B5.69

56.23

274.38

56.23

224.38

56.23

166.59

13.33

Total

468.83

34192

330.61

250.61

185.43

Mote ; Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments

¢ Sanskar Medica Indla Limited the subsidiary company has filed a petition with National
Company Law Tribunal, Delhi for reductien of paid up capital, The application, when approved,
will allow reduction of paid up capital and consequently loan given to parént company, M/s
Yatharth Hospital and Trauma Care Strvices Limited will be reduced as it is wholly owned
subsidiary of Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited,

Other Financial Assets
Security Deposits- with Government Departmertts

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity- Pledged with hank for bank guarantees

468.83

6.81

2.25

341.92

2.24

3.98

330.61

2.24

2.77

280.61

2.52

2.17

185.43

1.64

12.93

Total

9.06

§.21

5.00

4.69

14.57

Other Non Current Assets
Capital Advances
Advance Income Tax and TDS {Net of Provisions)

30,60
17.90

734
45.95

60.02

3o

17.80
17,80

TFotal

42.50

53.80

60.02

31.92

Inventories
{Valued at lower of cost or net realisable vatue}

Consumable Pharmacy -

13.24
10.28

14,16
13.23

15.75
10.02

15.62
6.99

13.16
4135
20.31

Consumables Stores
Total

23,52

27.39

25.76

22.61

Trade Receivables

(m} Teade Receivables considered good - Secured
Others

[b) ¥rade Reveivibles conaidered good - Unsecured
Related partes
Others

Leas: - Provision for Credit risk
Net Teade Receivables

{¢} Trade Regeivables which have cignificant increase in Credit Rizsk-Boubtinl

814.04
814.04

50.70
763.34

33388
333.85

17.12
MNe6.72

184.45
184.45

16.60
167.85

167.85

132.96
132.96

13.62
119.27

119.27

96.09
96.09

9.36
86.73

86.73

763.34

316.72

Totl
Prad-l

Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue eamed from providing medical, healtchare and other ancillary services. No interest is charged on the
outstanding balance, regardless of the age of the batance. The company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) maodel for measurerent and recognition of impairerment loss

towards expected risk of detays and default in collection.

The company has used a practical expedient by cotnputing the expected credi
specific provision in cases where there are known specific risks of customer 4
experience and adjusted for forward-leeking information.

t loss allowance based on recovery pattern of receivables in the past. Management makes
elault in making repayments. The provision matrix takes into aceount histprical credit loss



YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

[ Ay Known as ¥utharth Horpital & T, Cars Barvicos Pvt. Led.|

Hotes to Financlal Statements

Trade Recelvable aging schedul
(Rs. In Millicos|

As at 3lst March, 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods
Less thap 6 months & Months-1 year 1-Zyears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
al Urndisputed Trade receivables- Considered Good 609.01 203,82 1.22 - - 814.04

b} Urndisputed Trade receivabies- Considerad Doubtlul
¢} Undisputed Trade recelvables- Credit Impaired - - - - - .
d} Disputed Trade recefvables- Considersd Good - - - - - .
¢| Disputed Trade receivables- Considered Doubthyt - B . . . . .
fi Disputed Trade receivables- Credit Impaired - - - . . -

Ax at 3Lst March, 2021

Particulars Dutzstanding for following periods
Less than & monthks 6 Months-1 year 1.2 years 2-3 years  More than 3 years Totel
a] Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered Good 314.49 19,35 - . - 333.85
b} Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered Doubiful - - - - - -
¢} Undisputed Trade receivables- Credit Impaired - - - - - .

d) Pisputed Trade receivables- Considered Good - - - . . .
¢) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered Doubtlui - - - - . -
Nl Disputed Trede recelvables- Credit Impaired . . - .

A= at 31st March, 2020

Particulars Outstending for followiny periods

Lesa thae 6 mopths 6 Months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More thun 3 years Total
a}) Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered Good 119.36 £5.09 - - - 184.45
o) Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered Doubtiul . - - - - -

2l Undisputed Trade receivables- Credit Impaired - - - - - -
1) Disputed Trade receivables- Considered Good - - - s - -
7} Disputed Trade receivables- Considered Doubtiul - - N - _

1 Pisputed Trade recelvables- Credit Impaired . - . _

4z at 31st March, 2019

3articulars Qutstanding for following periods
Less than 6 months 6 Months-1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
| Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered Good 52.30 62.92 17.74 - - 132.96

3 Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered Doubtfisl - -
|} Undigputed Trade receivables- Credit Impaired - - -
I Disputed Trade receivables- Considered Good - - - -
| Dusputed Trade receivables. Considersd Doubitlul - - - -
t PDisputed Trade receivables- Credit Irnpaired - - . -

s at 18t April, 2018

‘articulars Outstandlag for following periods
Less than 6 mmonths 6 Months-1 year 1.2 yerrs 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
} Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered Good 43.83 29.50 7.76 - - 96,09

} Undisputed Trade receivables- Considered Doubthil - -

1 Undisputed Trade receivables- Credit Impaired - - . .

| Disputed Trade receivabies- Considered Good - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables- Considered Doubtfyl - . - .
Disputed Trade receivables- Credit lmpaired - - -

<thiz space has been intentionally eft blorki>
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YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

pital & Traume Care Bervices Pvi. Lid.|

rly Known as Tuthsrth

(Rs. In Millions)

Notes to Fi ial Stat ts
As ot March 31, Asnt March  As ot March  As at March As at April 1,
Particulers 2022 21, 2021 31, 2020 ar, 2019 2018
9 Cash end cash equivalants
Balance with banks in current accounts 12.50 .20 J.a4 0.89 55.65
Cash in hand 1.90 3.09 8.90 1.81 1.36
Bank Deposits with maturing with in 3 months- pledged with banks 0.51 - - - -
Total 14.90 65.29 i2.84 2.70 57.01
10 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Bank Deposits & Interest accured on Bank deposit 3.40 1.50 1.42 1.31 1.36
Total 3.40 1.50 1.42 1.31 1.36
11 Current tax assets
TDS & Advance income tax (et of provision for income tax) - 18.06 45.95 23.67 14.86
Total - 18.06 £5.95 25.67 14.86
12 Other Current asrets
Stall Imprest and Advances 3.58 5.14 1.26 1.08 1.3%
Other amount recoverable 27722 15.04 6.80 9.42 9.25
Unamortised capital issue expenses 21.41 - - - -
Security Deposit-others 1,12 .84 .39 0,29 3,25
Total 303.33 21.01 8.45 10.79 10.84
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YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

{F" 1y Known an pital & Trauoia Care Services Prt. Ltd,)
Notes to Financial Stat t Rs. Iz Millions)
As at March  As ot March  As nt March 31, Asx‘at March 31 As at April 1
32 + B P '
Share Capital 31, 2022 31, 2021 2020 2019 2018
Autborised
115,600,000 (Previous Years 20,000,000 Equity shares) of Rs. 10/- each 1,150.00 200,00 200.00 200.00 200.00
Totnl 1,160.00 200.00 200,00 200.00 200.00
Equity share capital
lsgued, Subgcribed f Pajd up -
55,516,900 [Previous Year 16,379,225 Equity shares, 16,379,225 as at 3ist March, 2020, 16,379,223 655,17 183.90 163.79 163.79 158.97
asat 31st March, 2¢19 and 15,896,975 as at 01st April, 2018} of Rs. 10/- each
Izsued, Subscribed & Nat Paid up
NIL - - - - R
Total 455.17 163.79 163,79 163.79 158.97
131 R Hiatton of bar of chares outstanding ef the heginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity Sharss
Shares ding at the beginning of the year 14,379,335 16,379,225 16,379,225 15,896,975 15,296 975
Shares isgued during the year in vash - - - 482,250 -
Shares issued during the year other than in cash- Bonas Shares 49,137,675 - - . -
Shares breught back during the year - - - - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 65,516,900 15,379,225 16,379,225 16,379,225 15,896,975
13.2 Terms / rights aitached to Equity shares
The Company has only ene ciass of squity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each halder of equity shares is entitled ta one vote per share.
In the event of the liguidation of the Company, the helder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining asscts of the company, after distribution of all preferental
ameunts. The distribution will be in propertion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,
12,3 Equity Shares in the company held by ench shareholder bolding more thon 5 percent shares specifying the aumber of shares held
Name of Sharsholder As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No. of equity % of holding  Nv. of equity % oTholding  Ne. ol equity % of holding
ahares held . shares bheid shares held
Pr. Ajay Kumar Tyag 27,021,600 41.24% 6,755,400 41.24% 6,755,400 41.24%
Dr. Kapil Kumar Tyag - 12,164 4040 18.57%. 3,041,100 18.87% 3,041,100 18.57%
Dr. Manju Tyagi 11,524,200 17.50% 2,881,050 17.55% 2,881,050 17.59%
Dr. Neena Tyag 7,019,600 1007 1% 1,754,900 10.71% 1,754,900 10.71%
Vimla Tyagi 3,743,000 5.71% 935,750 571% 935,750 5.71%
As at March 31, 2019 Ax mt April 1, 2018
Name of Sharebelder
No. of equity % of holdipg Reo. of equity % of holding
shares held shars held
Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi 6,755,400 41.24% 6,565,400 41.30%
Dr. Kapil Kumar Tyagi 3,041,100 1557 2,576,100 18.72%
Dir, Manju Tyagi 2,881,050 17.54% 2,793,380 17.57%
B, Neena Tyagi 1,754,504 10.71% 1,614,90¢ 10.16%
Vimla Tyagi 835,750 571% 935,750 5.89%
13.4 Equity shares reserved for issie under opti and ts |/ i for the aale of sharer / disinvestments, including torms and amouvots
NIL
13.5 Aggregate oumber and dass of squity shares allotted as fully paid np p t to trect withont pay t belng twedl ip cash, allok: t by way of boous
*"  shares or sharex bought back
Particulers 2021-22 202¢-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-13
Cempany has allotted 43137675 equity shares of Rz, 10 each,
valued at Rz, 491.38 million on to existing shareholders by way of 49,137,675 . . - - -
pitalisation of Share prefmium and lated Profit & Loss.
13.6 The cormpany does not have any helding company or ultimate bolding company,
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13.7 Ghareholding of Promoters
&. No. FRame of Shareholder

3 Dr. Ajay Evmar Tyagi
Opening Balance
Acquired During the year
Closging Balance

2 Dr. Kapil Kumar
Opening Balance
Acquired During the year
Closing Balance

1 Pr. Ajay Kumnar Tyngi
Qpening Balance
Acquired During the year
Closing Bajance

2 Dy Hapif Rumar
Opening Balance
Acquired During the year
Clesing Balance

As at Marek 31, 2022

% of totel % Chacge
Ko, of equity shares during Yenr
shares held
6,755,400 41.24%
20,266,200 30.93%
27,021,600 41.24% 300.00%
3,041 100 18.57%
9,123,300 55.70%
12,164,400 18.57% 300.00%
Ax ab Muarch 31, 2019
Fo. of nquity % of total % Change
shazes beld shares during Year
6,565,400 41.30%
190,000 1.16%.
6,755,400 41.24% 2.89%
2,976,100 18.72%
65,000 0.40%
3,041,100 18.57% 2. 18%

Av at Marsh 31, 2021

% of total
No. of aquity shares
shares held
6,755,400 41.24%
. Q.00%
6,755,400 £1.24%
3,041,100 18.57%
- 0.00%
3,041,100 18.57%

Aa st Aprl 1, 2018

Hao, of aquity *% of total

shares beld shares
6,565,400 41.30%
£,363,400 41.30%
2976, 100 18720
2,976,10:] 1872

<this space has been intentionally left blank>

% Change
during Year

0.00%

0.00%

% Change
duricg Year

0.G0%%

0.00%

As at March 31, 2020

% of tatal % Change
Ha. of sguity shares during Yewr
shares held
5,755,400 41.24%
- 0.00%
6,755,490 41.24% 0.00%
3,041,100 18.57%
- 0.00%
3,041,100 18.57% 0.00%



YATHARTH BOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

rly Known a8 Y
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Notes to Finaucial Stxtemants

14

Other Equity

Particuinrs Beourities Preminm Retained Enrnings Othar Comprhensive Total other
Income Equity
Balance as at Est Aprif, 2018 133.20 186.19 - 319.39
Impact on account of Transition to Ind AS, net of related deffered tax as at 1 - (10.23) - 110.23)
133.20 175.96 - 309.16
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss transferred during the year - 40.90 - 40.20
Additionfideletion) during the year 43.40 - - 43.40
R: ment of defined benefit liability (net of tax} - - 003 .03
Balance ae ot 31t March, 2019 175.60 216.86 003 393.40
-
Particulars Securitiss Premium Retained Barnings Other Comprhenslve Total other
Income Eguity
Balance as at 1st April, 2019 176,60 21686 0.03 393.49
Surplus in the statctment of profit and loss transferred during the year - 12.85 . 12.85
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability inct of tax) - - {0.03) {0.03)
Balance a5 at 31st March, 2020 176.60 229,71 0.00 406.32
Particulars Securities Preminm Retained Barcings Qther Comprhensive Total other
_Income Eoqui
Balance as at st April, 2020 176.60 229.71 0.00 406,32
Surplus in the statement of prefit end loss transferred during the year - 123.43 - 123.43
R t of defined benefit liability {net of tax} - - a.02 0.02
Balancs as at 31t March, 2021 176.64 353.14 002 529.77
Particulare Securitiet Premium Retained Earnings Cther Comprhensive ~ Total other
Income Bquity
Balance as at st April, 2021 176.60 35314 0.02 529.77
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss transferred during the year - 420,87 - 420.87
lssue of Bonus Shares (17660} (31477} - 491.38)
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (net of tax) - - 267 2.67
- 459.24 2.70 461.94

Balance as at 3Ist March, 2022

Securities Premium .
Securities premium is uscd to record the premium received on issue of

Retained Earnings

‘shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

The amount that can be distributed by the company as dividends to pay its cquity and preferenice (il any} shareholders,

Other Comprehensive Income
R t of defi

d benefit pians comprise of acturial gains and losses.
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YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

harth ital & Tranms Cara Services Pvt. Ltd.)

{

iy Known as ¥

32 FRight of Use Assets

A.

Teansition to Ind AS 116 “Leases” w.e.f 1 April 2019

A new Jease standard ie., Ind AS 116 has been notified to be effective w.e.f. 1 April 2019 which provide guidelines for the accounting of the

lease contracts enteted in the capacity of a lessee and & lessor. For the purpose of preparation of Standalone Financial Information, the

management has evaluated the impact of change in accounting policies on adoption of Ind AS 116 for the year ended 31 March 2019.
Hence in these Standalone Financial Information, Ind AS 116 has been adopted with effect from April 1, 2018 following modified
retrospective method fi.e. on 1st April 2018 (the transition date] the company has measured the lease liability at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate and a right-of-use assets are measured attheir
carrying amount as if Ind A3 116 had been applied since the commencement date, discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing
rate at the date of initial application).

Ind A8 116 supersedes Ind AS 17 Leases including its appendices {Appendix C of Ind A8 17 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases- Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease}. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on the balance sheet. ’

Following are the changes in the carrying values of right of use assets for the period/year ended 31 March 2022 & 31 March 2021;

The company has elected not to apply the requirements of [nd AS 116 "Leases” to short-term Jeases of all assets that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except inflation adjustment.

Following are the changes in the carrying values of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2022

Following are the ct Particuf Category of HOU Assets-  Category of ROU Total
Medionl Equiptments Assets- Office
Grose Block
Cost as at April 01, 2018 - - -
aAdditions 123.57 - 123.57
Detetion - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2019--A 123.57 123.5%
Additions - - -
Deletion - - -
Balence as st April 01, 2020--B 123.57 - 123.57
Additions - - -
Deletion - - -
Brlance as at March 3, 2021--C 123.57 - 123.57
Additions - 1.24 1.24
Dreletion . - - -
123.57 1.24 124.581

Balance as at March 31, 2022-D

Accumuplated Depreciation
A lated Depreciation as at Dlst Aprdl 2018 - - -
Depreciation charge for the year * 6.60 - 6,60
Disposals - - -
Accmulated Depreciation as at March 31, 2019--E 6.60 6.60
Depreciation charge for the year 20.75 - 2075
Disposals - - -
Accmunlated Depreciation as at March 31, 2020--F 27.35 27.35
20.58 - 20.58

Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals
A 47.94 - 47.94

Jated Depreciation as et March 31, 2021--G

A tated Depreciation ag at March 31, 2021 47.94 - 47.94

Depreciation charge for the period 20.58 0.17 20.76

Disposals - - -

A tated Depreciation as at March 31, 2022--H 68.52 .17 68.69

Net Carrying amounts

As at April 1, 2018 - - - -

As gt March 31, 2019 (A-E} 116.97 - 116.97

As at March 31, 2020 (B-F) 96.21 - 96.21

As at March 31, 2021 (C-G} 75.63 - 75.63
55.04 1.07 56.12

As at March 31, 2022 (D-H)

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is Included under depreciation and
amortization expense in the statentent of Prefit and Loss.

[Ra. In Millions)



C.

The following is the rental expense recorded for short-term leases, variable leuges and low vulue assats

Far the For the Far the Faor the
Particulars year ended year ended year ended year enided
21 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Short Term Lease 15.61 11 6.83 5.22
Following is the mov £ in leane liabilities for the year ended 31 March 2022
Particulars Lease liabilities
Balance as at 1 April 2018 -
Additions 111.17
Finance coat 1.26
Payment of lease abilities 5.31
Balince as at 31 March 2019 107.12
Hon-current 1ease Habilities 00.46
Current Jease liabllities 16,66
Balance as at 1 April 2019 107,12
Additions -
Finance cost 4.58
Payment of lease liabilities 21.24
Balance as st 3} March 2020 90.46
Non-current lease liabfiities 73.02
Current jease liabiiities 17.44
Balance as at 1 April 2020 90,46
Additiens -
Finance cost 3.80 -
Payment of lease liabilities 21.24
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2021 73.02
Hor-current lease Habilities 5476
Current lease Habilities 18.26
Balance as at ] April 2021 73.02
Additions 1.24
Finance cost joz
Payment of lease labilities 21.43
Balance as at 31 March 2022 55.85
Non-current lease Jiabilities 36.74
Current lease liabilities 19.12
The following is the cash outflow o leases during the periods/years:
For the For the For the For the
Particalara year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Payment of lease liabilities 21.43 21.24 2124 5.31
Short-term lease expense 15.61 8.11 6.83 5.22
Total cash outflow on leases 37.04 29.35 28.06 10.53
The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of leass Uabilities ax at period fyear-end o an endiscounted basis:
For the For the For the For the
Particolars year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
w
Less than 1 year 21.43 25.48 28.80 27.31
35.41 75.39 109.89 125.15

ito 5 years

More than 5 years -
The company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilitics as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations

related to lease Tiabilities as and when they fall due,

S
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Naotes to Financial Stutements
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18

b

(Rs. In Millions)

Patticulars As at March 31,  As at March 3I, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April
2022 2021 2020 2019 1, 2018
Botrowings
Secured
Term loans (Indian currency)
From banks 673.29 33.65 31.52 33.43 -
From financial insttutions 8.30 859432 £810.57 921,62 B595.26
G81.59 89B.07 842.10 955.11 B95.26
Loan for Vehicles against hypothecation - Banks 18.96 16,72 7.94 1146 13,60
Unsecared
From banks - 0.33 3.36 2.54 3.39
From financial instibitions - 1.65 218 6.05 530
From Other's - - 26.53 20.00 -
Total 700.55 917.27 882,10 995.15 917.55
For terms and conditfons, security and repayments please refer note no 37
(ther Financial Liabilities
Becured -
Unsecured
Advance (rom subsidiary company (refer note 4 also) 50.10 56.10 37.40 - -
Tatal 56.10 56.10 a7.40 - -
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at March 31, As at April
2022 2021 2020 2019 1, 2018
Provizions
Provision for empleyee benefit 7.97 ¢.41 0.33 0.23 D.18
Total . 7.97 041 0.33 0.23 0.18
Peferred Tax Liabilities-Net
Deferred tax liabiiities
On account of Depreciation 65.26 57.88 45,25 27.19 16.44
On account of Cthers 1.29 1.62 2.61 3.83 0.98
Sub Total { A} 66.54 59.51 47.86 31.01 17.43
Deferred tax Assets
On account of Losses and Tax disallowances 2.33 0.13 9.10 2.03 0.05
On account of Others 14.76 4.76 4.52 3.81 2.60
MAT credit entitlement - 15.04 17.29 12.08 -
Sub Total | B) 17.09 19.94 3L.01 17.91 2.66
Deferred Tax Liabilities-Net { A-E) 49.45 39.57 16.85 13.10 14,77

For movement of deferred Tax, refer Note 18.1
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YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Enown as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Prt, Ltd.}

Note No. 18.1

Deferred Tax Assets/Deferred Tax Liabilities

As on 1st April, 2018

{Rs. In Millions)

Particulars Opening Recognised in  Other Comprehensive Closing balance
balance Profit or loss Income
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
Provigion for emrployee benefits - .05 - 0.05
On IND AS Adjustments - 2.60 - 2.60
Deferred Tax Assets Fotal - 2.66 - 2.66
Deferred tax liabilities on account of
Due to depreciation 10.54 5.90 - 16.44
Others - 0.98 - .98
Deferred Tax Liabilities Total 10.54 6.88 - 17.43
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) [10.54) {4.23) . (14.77)
Az on 31st March, 2019
Particulars Cpening Recognized in Other Comprehensive Closing balance
halance Profit or loss Incomse
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
MAT Credit 12.08 - i2.08
Provision for doubtfu!l trade receivables/advances - - - -
Provision for employee benefits 0.05 0.03 [oal} 0.06
Business loss & Tax disallowance benefit carried forward and others - 1.96 - 1.96
Others 2.60 1.20 - 3.61
DPelerred Tax Assets Total 2.66 15.27 {0.01} 17,91
Deferred tax Iiabilities on account of
Due to depreciation 16.44 10.7% - 27.19
Others 0.95 2.54 - 3.83
Deferred Tax Liabilities Total 17.43 13.59 - 31.01
PDeferred Tax Assets/{Liability) (14.77) 1.68 {0.01) {13.10)
is at April 1, 2020
Particulars Opening Recognised in Other Comprehensive Closing balance
halance Profit or loss Income
Jeferred tax assets in relation to;
MAT Credit 12.08 5.22 - 17.29
Provision for doubiful irade receivables/advances - - - -
ovision for employee benefits 006 0.03 0.01 0.10
Business less & Tax disallowance benefit carried forward and others 1.96 7.03 - .09
On IND AS Adjustments 381 0.51 - 4.62
Deferred Tax Assets Total 17.91 13.09 0.01 31.0F
Deferred tax liabilities on account of
Due to depreciation 27.1% 18.05 - 45.25
Others 3.83 (1.21) - 2.61
Deferred Tax Liahilitles Total 31.01 16.84 - 47.86
leferred Tax Assets/(Liability) {13.10} {3.76) 0.01 {16.85)
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As on 31=st March, 2021
Particalars Opening Recognized in  Other Comprehensive Closing balanee
balance Profit or loss Income
Peferred tax assets in relation to:
MAT Credit 17.29 (2.25) - 15.04
Provision for doubtful trade receivables/advances N - . -
Provision for employee benefits 0.10 0.03 0.01) 0.13
Business loss & Tax disallowance benefit carried forward and others 8.99 {8.99) - -
On [IND A8 Adjustments 4.62 0.15 - 4.76
Deferred Tax Assets Total 31.01 (11.06) [0.01) 19.94
Deferred tax liabilities on account of
Due to depreciation 45.25 12.63 - 57.88
Qthers 261 {0.99) - 1.62
Deferred Tax Liabilftiesx Total 47.86 11.65 - 59.51
Deferred Tax Assataf{Liability} {16.85) {22.71) {0.01} {39.57}
Ag on 31st March, 2022
Particulars Opening Recognised in Other Comprehensive Clozing balance
halunce Profit or loss Income
Deferred tax assets in relation to:
MAT Credit 15.04 (15.04) - -
Provision for doubtful trade receivables/advances - - - -
Provision for employee benefits 0.13 3.30 {1.19) 2.33
Business loss & Tax disallowance benefit carried forward and others - - . -
Omn IND AS Adjustments 4.76 10.G0 - 14.76
Deferred Tax Assets Total 19.94 t1.75) {1.10} 17.09
Deferred tux Habilities on account of
Due to depreciation 57.88 7.38 - 65.26
Chhers 1.62 {0.34) - 1.29
Deferred Tax Liabilities Total 50.51 7.04 - 66.54
Deferred Tax Assets/{Liability} {39.57) [B.79) {1.10} (49.45)

<this space has been intentionally left blank>




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly Enown as Yatharth Hospital & Trawma Care Services Pot. Ltd.}

Notes to Financial Statements
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20

{Rs. In Mitlions)

As at March 31, As at March As at March 3 As at M 31
Partioulars 2023 2021 3 2020 b 2oa1r;h ! AsatAprdl 1, 2018
Borrowings*®
Becnred
Working Capital from Banls 100,45 35.49 52.96 58.11 67.04
Current maturities of Long Term Borrowings
From banks 22234 24.87 25.09 16.65 -
From financial institutons 9.43 42.63 146.07 92.64 82.01
Loan for Vehicles against hypotheeation- Banks 7.08 6.13 5.28 5.39 3.97
Unsecured
From hanks - 2.40 2.13 4,05 7.55
From financial institutions - 112 5.0 10.86 6.44
From Directors §1.64 - - - -
39142 112.64 236.53 187.69 167.00
*For terms and conditions, security and repayments please refer note no 37
Trade payables {refer note no. 36)
(8] Due to Micro and small enterprises 2281 - - - -
(b} Due to others 138.06 123.28 121.50 125.40 60.94
Total 160.90 128.28 121.60 125.40 00,94
Trade Payebles Ageing Schedule
As at 31st March, 2022
Particulary Less than 1 year 1-2 Yoears 23 Years More than 3 Years Total
a) MSME 2281 - - - 22.81
b} Others 13808 - - - 138.08
¢ Disputed dues- M3ME - - - - -
d} Disputed dues- Gthers - - - - -
Total ) 160,90 - - - 160.90
Ax at 31st March, 2021
Particulars Less than I year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years ‘Total
a} MSME - - - -
bj Cthers 128.28 - - 125.28
¢} Disputed ducs- MSME T - - - -
dj Disputed dues- Others - - - - o
Total 128.28 - - - 128.28
Ax at 31t March, 2020 - -
FParticulars Lesy than 1 year 1-2 Tears 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
al MSME ’ Lo . - - -
b} Others 121.60 - - - 121.60
¢] Disputed dues- M3ME - - - -
d} Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
Total 121.60 - - - 121.60
As at 313t March, 2019
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Yeats Total
2] MSME . . - - -
bj Others 12540 - - . 125.40
¢} Disputed dues- MSME - - - -
d) Disputed dues- Others - - - - -
Total 125.40 - - - 125.40
As at 1st Apsl, 2018
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
a) MSME - - - - -
b) Others 60.94 N - - 60.94
c} Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
d} Pisputed dues- Others - B - - -
Total 60.94 - - - 60.94




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly Known ax Yatherth Hosplital & Trauma Care Services Pyt Lid.)

Notes to Financial Statemernts

|Rs. In Millions)
As at March 31, As at March 31, Asat March 31, AsatMarch AsatAprll,
Particulars 2022 2021 2020 31, 2019 2018
21 Other financial liabilities
Liability for land - 11.81 i1.91 11.91 28.62
lnterest accrued but not due 0.58 - - - -
Expenses Payable 101.13 59.78 86.34 5L.15 39.77
Total . 101.71 71.68 93,24 63.06 68.39
22 Other current labilities
Statutory Dues 19.05 16.88 43.36 19.22 6.45
Other Liabilities - - - 1.20 1.20
Amount due to related parties 130.09 - - - -
Advances from customer 6.39 5.27 1.23 7.80 3.25
Total 155.54 22.16 44.59 28.22 10.89
23 Provisions
Provision for empioyee benefit 0.04 0.06 0.04 6.00 0.00
For taxation - Net of Advance Tax 62.06 - - - -
Total 62.10 0.06 0.04 0.00 0.00
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YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
[Formerly Koown as Yathartl Hospital & Traumz Cure Services Pvt. Etd.}

HNotes to Financilal Statements

(Rs. In Millions)
As at As at Ax at As at
Note No. Particulars 31-March-2022 31-March-2021 21-Maroh-2020 31-March-2019
(Rs.) [B=.} {Rs.) |Rs.)
24 Fevenue from operations
Income from medical and healthcare services* 2,985.90 1,647.28 1.327.05 1,018.33
Total 2,985.90 1,647.28 1,327.05 1,018.33
*Refer Note 38
o Other income
Interest income on bank deposits 0.50 .32 0.30 .73
Interest on income tax refund 5.36 4.15 - .
Rental Income from telecom towers 0.63 0.63 110 165
Cther non operating income- canteen sales 6.21 . - .
“Total 12.71 £10 1.40 2.39
26 Cost of Material Consumed
Medicines consumad
Opening balance 14.16 15.75 15.62 13.16
Purchase 2TV 173.68 126.67 55.96
Less: closing stock [13.24 {14.16] {15.75} {15.62)
Material Consumed-A 278.46 175.27 129.54 93.50
Consamable stores
Opening balance 13.23 10.02 6.99 715
Purchase 310.14 131,93 125.86 161.20
Less: closing stock (10.28) (13.23) 110.02) [6.99}
Stores Consumed-B 313.09 128.72 122.84 101.36
TOTAL COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED A+B 591.58 303,99 252.38 194.86
27 Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and other benelits 559.45 317.91 214.49 17198
Director's Remuneration 41.00 28,80 28.80 28.80
Key men insurance 148 1.41 1.41 1.41
Stall welfare expenses 9.69 1.52 1.34 2.51
“Total 511.62 349.63 246.04 204.70
28 Finance cost
[nterest on secured loans 97.65 115.31 128.42 58.74
Interest expense on Lease Lisbility- Srei Leasze Rent (refer Note 32) 2,98 3.80 4.58 1.26
Interest en unsecured loans .51 1.94 547 291
Interest on Others - Land 13.22 - - -
Interest on Statutory Dues 5.26 Q.15 1,42 -
Total 119.62 121.20 139.89 62.91
29 Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation 131.65 144.25 168.72 8381
“Tokal 131.65 144.25 168.72 83.81
=




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
[Formerly Known as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Pyt Ltd )

Notes to Financial Statements - {Rs. In Millions)
As at As at As at As at
Note No. Particulars 35-March-2022 31-Mapch-2021 31-March-2020 31-Merch-2019
{Bs.} [Rs.) (Rs.) [Rs.]
30 Other expenses
Specialist Charges 361.16 250.28 233.41 180.44
Lab Expenses 28.84 34.43 16.09 7.69
Power, Fuel & Utilities 35.78 66.70 61.85 46.61
Advertisement & Marketing 7.52 3.28 475 216
Vehicle running & maintenance 20,44 701 7.24 10.61
Repair & maintenznce 60.61 36.32 19.79 20.64
Discount allowed 206.47 106.59 93.97 105.02
Provision lor Expected credit loss 33.58 0.52 291 4.33
Bank & Finance Charge 8.51 7.20 8.52 5.84
Filling Fees 8.6l - - -
Legal & Prolessional Charges 1.85 0.32 0.44 0.4%
Canteen & food 30.37 10.92 13.14 1191
CSR Expenses 3.00 1,10 1.00 0.80
Canveyance & fravel 8.39 1.53 1.75 14
Director Siting Fes 0.42 - - -
Rent 15.61 8.11 6.83 5.22
Printing & stationery 6.23 5.28 7.6l 498
Office expenses 35.48 8.18 8.43 4.67
Communication Exp 362 2.53 - 215 2.12
[nsurance exepenses 0.7% .80 157 1.01
Auditor's remuneration
- For Audit fees 0.60 [1X 3 0.06 0.03
Other Miscellaneous Expenses . 588 3.62 3.10 4.42
“Total 940.98 555.66 499,60 423.14
31 Earning per Share
As al A5 at As at A& At
31-March-2022 3E-March-2021 31-March-2020 31.-March-2019
Particulars {Rs.} {Rs.) Rs.) [Ra.]
Prolit for the period/year 423.55 123.45 12.83 4093
shares
Weighted Average number of equity shares at the beginning of the
period /year 65,516,900.00 16,379,225.00 16,379,225.00 15,896,975.00
Weighted Average number of equity shares issued during the
Add pericd fyear - . - 3,964.00
Weighted Average number of equity shares at the end of the
period/year 65,516,900 16,379,225 16,879,225 15,900,939
Add/(Less) Bonus shares issued subsequent to period end considered for
calculation of Earning per share for relevant periods. - 49,137,675 49,137,675 47,702,816
65,516,900 65,516,900 65,516,900 63,603,755
Add/(Less) ltems having dilutive impact on equity shares - . - .
Weighted Average number of equity shares (without bonus .
shares] at the end of the period/ year-Diluted EPS 65,516,900 16,379,225 16,379,225 15,900,939
Earnings Per Share 6.46 7.54 0.78 2.57
Diluted Earnings Per Share 6.46 7.54 .78 2.57
Weighted Average number of equity shares [with bonus shares) at
the end of the period/year-Diluted EPS 65,515,900 65,516,900 65,516,900 63,603,755
Earnings Per Share 6.46 1.88 0.64
Diluted Earnings Per Share 6,46 1.88 a.64




Note No. 33

First Time Adoption of Ind AS

For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2021, the company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). Now the
company has restated the Financials for the year ended 31 March 2019, 31st March 2020 and 31st

March 2021.

The company has prepared restated financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for
periods ending on 31 March 2021, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2020 and 31st March 2019 as described in the summary of significant accounting
policies. In preparing these financial statements, the company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as
at lst April 2018, the company’s date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal
adjustments made by the company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the
balance sheet as at 1 April 2018 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March

2019, 31 March 2020 and 31st March 2021.

Exemptions applied:-

Deemed cost- Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment, and
intangible assets recognised as of April 1, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP
and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Estimates
The estimates at 1 April 2018,as at 31 March 2019, 2020 and 2021 are consistent with those made for

the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP {after adjustments to reflect any differences in
accounting policies} apart from the following items where application of Indian GAAP did not require
estimation: ' )
Impairment of financial assets based.on expected credit loss model. .

The estimates used by the company to present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect
conditions at 1 April 2018, the date of transition to Ind AS, as of 31 March 2019.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
The company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 on the basis of facts and

circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Impairment of financial assets: (Trade receivables and other financial assets)

At the date of transition to Ind AS, the Company has determined that there significant increase in credit
risk since the initial recognition of a financial instrument would require undue cost or effort, the
Company has recognised a loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses at each
reporting date until that financial instrument is derecognised {unless that financial instrument is low

credit risk at a reporting date).




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

(Formerly Brown as Yatharth Honpital & Traume Cara Swrvices Pot, Ltd.)

Note 33 {i){a}- Effect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone balance sheet as at April 1, 2018

(Ra. In Millions)

IND AS
Particulars Previous GAAP ADJUSTMENTS ind AS
ASBSETS
1 Noxn Current assets -
{a) Property ,plant and equipment 467.40 - 467.40
{b) Capital worlc in progress 801.48 30.08 831.56
{9 Investment in Subsidiaries 185.43 - 18543
{d) Financial Assets 46.51 (31.94) 14.57
{e} Other Non Current Assets - 17.80 17.80
1,500.81 15.95 1,516.76
2 Current assets
{a} Inventories 20.31 - 20.31
{b) Financial Assets - -
{i) Trade receivables 92.84 {6.11) 86.73
{ii}Cash and cash equivalents 41.40 15.62 57.01
{iii} Other Financial Assets - 1.36 1.26
{e] Current Tax assets [Net) - 14.86 14.86
(d} Other Current asseis - 10.84 10.84
154.54 36.56 191,19
Total Assets 1,655.35 52,51 1,707.87
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
{a} Equity Share Capital 158.97 - 158,97
{b) Other Equity 319.39 {10.23) 309.16
478.36 {10.23) 468.13
2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 1,068.09 {150.54) 917.55
{i) Lease Liabilities - - -
{iii) Others - - -
{b) Deferred tax liabilities 10.54 4.23 14.97
{¢) Provisions - 0.18 0.18
1,078.64 146.13} £H32.51
3 Current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities .
{ij Borrowings - 167.00 167.00
fii} Lease Liabilities - - -
{iii) Trade payables
{a} Tatal outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and - - -
Small Enterprises - - -
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 50.94 10.00 60.94
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
{iii} Other financial liabilities - 68.39 68.39
{b] Other current liabilities 47.42 (36.52) 10.89
{c] Provisions - 2.00 .00
98.35 208.88 307.23
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,655.35 52.51 1,707.87

5o




Note 33 (i)(t)- Effect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone balance sheet as at 31st March 2019

IND AS
Particulars Previous GAAP ADJUSTMENTS Ind AS
ASSETS
1 Non Current assets
{a} Property ,plant and equipment 1,460.71 0.01 1,460.72
{b) Capital work in progress - - .
{c} Right to use Asset - 116.97 116.97
[} Investmentin Subsidiaries 281.67 {1.08) 280.61
{e) Financial Assets 71.14 66.45) 4.69
(i Other Non Current Assets - 31.92 31.92
1,813.53 81.38 1,894.91
2 Current assets
{a) Inventories 22.61 - 2261
(b) Financial Assets
(i} Trade receivables 125.16 (5.89) 119.27
{ijCash and cash equivalents 4.87 {2.17) 2.70
{iii} Other Financial Assets - 1.31 1.31
{c} Current Tax assets (Net} - 25.67 25.67
(d} Other Current assets - 10.79 10.79
152.64 20.71 182.35
Total Assets 1,966.17 111.09 2,077.26
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
{a} Equity Share Capital 163.79 - 163.79
(b} Other Equity 392.08 1.41 393.49
555.88 1.41 557.29
2 Ron-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 1,195.29 {200.13) 995.15
{ii} Lease Liabilities - 90.46 90.46
{iif} Others - - -
{b) Deferred tax liabilities 28.03 {14.93) 13.10
(<] Provisions - 0.23 0.23
8 1,223.32 [124.37 1,098.94
i3 Current liabilities
{a}- Financial liabilities -
{i} Borrowings - 187.69 187.69
i} Lease Liabilities - 16.66 16.66
(iii} Trade payables
(a) Total cutstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and - - -
Small Enterprises -
(b Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 115.40 10.00 125.40
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises -
{iii} Other financial liabilities - 63.06 63.06
{b) Other current liabilities 71.57 {43.35) 28.22
{c) Provisions - 0.00 0.00
186.97 234.06 421.03
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,966.17 111.09 2,077.26




Note 33 (i}{c} Effect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone balance sheet as at 31st March 2020

IND AS
Particulars Previous GAAP ADJUSTMENTS Ind AS
ASSETS
1 Hon Curreat aszets
(&) Property ,plant and equipment 1.343.76 0.39 1,344.15
{b} Capital work in progress - - -
(e} Right to use Asset - 96.21 96.21
{d Investment in Subsidiaries 331.67 {1.06) 330.61
{e) Financial Assets 115.05 [110.04) 5.00
() Other Non Current Assets - £0.02 60.02
1,790.47 45.52 1,835.99
2 Current assets
{a] Inventories 25.76 B 25.76
{b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 184.43 {16.58) 167.85
(i)Cash and cash equivalents 14.40 {1.56) 12,84
(it) Other Financial Assets - 1.42 1.42
{c) Current Tax assets (Net) - 45.95 4595
(d) Other Current assets - 8.45 845
224,59 37.69 262.28
Total Assets 2,015.06 83.21 2,098.27
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(&) Equity Share Capital 163.79 - 163.79
{b) Other Equity 400.04 6.28 406.32
563.84 6.28 570,11
2 Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 1,120.81 {248.71) 882.10
(i} Lease Liabilities - 73.02 73.02
(iii) Others 37.40 * 37.40
{b) Deferred tax liabilities 43,69 (26.84} 15.85
{¢) Provisions - 0.33 0.33
1,211.90 [202.19) 1,009.70
3 Current linbilities
{a) Financial liabilities
{i) Borrowings - 236.53 236.53
(i) Lease Liabilities - 17.44 17.44
(i) Trade payables
{a) Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and - - -
Small Enterprises
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 109.63 11.97 121.60
Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises -
(iif) Other financial liabilities 129.70 {31.45) 98.24
(b) Other current liabilities - 44,59 44,59
{c) Provisions - 0.04 0.04
239.33 279.13 518.45
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,015.06 83.21 2,098.27




Note 33 (i}{d}- Effect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone balance sheet as at 31st March 2021

=

IND a8
Particulars Previous GAAP ADJUSTMENTS Ind AS
ASSETS
i Non Current assets
(@) Property .plant and equipment 1,256.79 {1C.59) 1,246.21
() Capital work in progress 7.84 {7.84) -
{c) Right to use Asset - 75.63 75.63
{d} Investment in Subsidiaries 342.98 {1.06} 341.92
{et Financial Assets 3.30 2.91 6.21
{fi Other Non Current Assets - 53.80 53.80
1,610.92 112.85 1,723.76
2 Current assets
{a) Inventories 27.39 - 27.39
{b} Financial Assets -
{i) Trade receivables 328.57 {11.85) 316.72
(iijCash and cash equivalents 6.29 - 6.29
(iii) Other Financial Assets - 1.50 1.50
{cd Current Tax assets {Net) - 18.06 18086
{d) Other Current assets 104.31 {83.30) 21.01
466.56 {75.59) 390.98
Total Assets 2,077.48 37.26 2,114.74
EQUITY AND LIABILI'TIES
1 Equity
{a] Equity Share Capital 163.79 - 163.79
{t) Other Equity 555.09 {25.33 529.77
718.89 {25.33) 693.56
2 Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial labilities
(i} Borrowings 842.55 74.72 917.27
{ii) Lease Liabilities - 54.76 54.76
{ii} Others 56.10 - 56.10
(b} Deferred tax liabilities 53.35 {13.78) 39.57
{c) Provisions ‘ - 0.41 0.41
951.99 116.11 1,068.11
3 Current liabilities
(a} Financial liabifities -
(i) Borrowings - 112.64 112.64
{ii} Lease Liabilities - 18.26 18.26
{iii) Trade payables -
{a) Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and - - -
Small Enterprises -
{b} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 130.81 12.52) 128.28
Micro Enterprises and Smali Enterprises -
{iii} Other Enancial liabilities 275.79 {204.11} 7168
{b) Cther current liabilities - 22.16 22.16
{c} Provisions - Q.06 0.06
406.60 {53.52) 353.08
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,077.48 37.26 2,114,74




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
[Formerly Known as Tatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Put, Etd.)

{Rs. In Milllonas)
Note 33{ii)[a) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone Profit & Loss as at March 31, 2019
Particular Notes Previous GAAP Effect of tr:r:ition to Ind Ind AS
Revenue from operations 1,018.33 - 1.018.33
Other income 2.39 - 2.39
Total Income 1,020.72 - 1,020.72
Expenses:
Cost of Material Consumed 1 188.14 6.72 194 86
Employee benefits expense 2 204.61 0.09 204,70
Specialist charges 1 180.44 {180.44) -
Finance cost 3,4 61.17 1.74 62.91
Depreciation and amostization expenses 3 76.26 7.55 83.81
Other expenses 1,3,4.5 146.42 276,72 423.14
Discount and Provison for Expected credit Loss 1 105.02 (105.02) -
Totel expenses 962,06 7.36 969.42
Profit/{Loss) hefore tax 58.66 {7.36) 51.30
Exceptional items - -
Profit before tax 58.66 {7.36) 51.30
Tax expense:
{1) Current tax 12.08 - 12.08
{2) Income tax of earlier years - - -
{3IMAT credit availed/reversed 6 - {12.08) {12.08)
{4} Deferred tax [net) & 17.49 (7.09} 10.40
Profit/(loss} irom operations 29.10 11.81 40.90
Profitf(loss} from continuing operations 29.10 11.81 40.90
Tax expense of continning operations . - .
Profit/{loss) from continuing operations [after tax) 29,10 11.51 40 .90
Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations . . .
Tax expense of discontinuing operations - - -
Profit/(loss) from discontinning eperations fafter tax) - R R
Profit{{loss) for the period 29.10 11.81 40,90
Other Comprehensive Income 7 - . -
items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods: . . .
Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans - .0.04 0.04
Income tax on Item that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss - {0.01) (0.01}
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 26.10 11.84 40.93
Explanation for reconciliation of Balance sheet and Profit & Loss as previcusly reported under previous GAAP to Ind AS
Note-1 Regrouping.
Note-2 Employee benefits:-Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Under [nd AS, the
actuarial gains and losses form part of re-measurement of net defined benefit liability / asset which is recognised in other comprehensive income in
the respective periods.
Note-3 Lease effect and Right to Use of Assets.
Note -4 Loan processing fees: As per IGAAP loan processing fees are charged to profit and loss or capitalized in the pericd in which it is incurred.
Under Ind AS loan processing fees are amortised over the period of loan.
Note-S Provision for Expected Credit Loss.
Note-6- Due to Restatment and Deferred Tax on IND AS Adjustment.
Note-7- Other Comprhensive Income,

o]




Note 33{if){b}
Particular

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income

Expenses:

Cost of Material Consumed

Employee benefits expense

Specialist charges

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Other expenses

Discount and Provison for Expected credit Loss

Tatal expenses

Profit/{Loss} before tax

Exceptional items

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

(1; Current tax

(2} Income tax of earlier years

(3IMAT credit availed/reversed

{4) Deferred tax (net)

Profit/{loss) from operations

Profit/(loss} from continuing operations

Tax expense of continuing operations

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations (after tax)
Profit/{loss) from discontinuing operations

Tax expense of discontinuing operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations (after tax}
Profit/{loss) for the period

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods;

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax on Item that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Notes

34

1,345

Eifect of Ind AS adoption on the standalone Profit & Loss as at March 31, 2020

Explanation for reconciliation of Balance sheet and Profit & Loss as previously reported under previous GAAP to Ind AS

Note-1 Regrouping.

Note-2 Employee benefits:-Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS, the
actuarial gains and losses form part of re-measurement of net defined benefit liability / asset which is recognised in other comprehensive income in

the respective periods.
Note-3 Lease effect and Right to Use of Assets.

Note -4 Loan processing fees: As per IGAAP loan processing fees are charged to profit and loss or capitalized in the period in which it is incurred.

Under Ind AS lean processing fees are amortised over the period of loan.

Note-5 Provision for Expected Credii Loss.

Note-6- Due to Restatment and Deferred Tax on IND AS Adjustment.

Note-7- Other Comprhensive Income.

Previous GAAP Effect of tr:lgttion to ind Ind AS

1,327.05 - 1,327.05
1.40 - 1,40
1,328.46 - 1,328.46
252.38 - 252.38
245.93 0.11 246,04

233.41 (233.4]) -
133.20 6.68 139.89
148.34 20.37 168,72
187.38 312,22 499,60

98.97 {98.97) -
1,299.62 7.01 1,306.63
28.83 £7.01) 21.83
2883 {7.01} 21.83
5.22 - 522
- (5.22} (5.22)
15.66 6.68) 897
7.96 4,89 12.85
7.96 4.89 12.85
7.96 ™ 489 12.85
7.96 489 12,85
. (0.04) {0.04)
- 0.01 0.01
7.96 4.87 12.83

L




Note 33{ii){c) Effect of Ind A8 adoption on the standalone Profit & Loss o at March 31, 2021

Particnlar

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income

Expenses:

Cost of Material Consumed

Employee benefits expense

Specialist charges

Finance cost

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Other expenses

Discount and Provison for Expected credit Loss
Total expenses

Profit/(Loss} before tax
Exceptional items

Profit before tax

Tax expense:

(1) Current tax

(2) Income tax of earlier years

{3)IMAT credit availed/reversed

{4) Deferred tax {net)

Profit/(loss) from operations

Profit/{loss) from continuing operations

Tax expense of continuing operations

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations (after tax)
Profit/{loss) from discontinuing operations

Tax expense of discontinuing operations
Profit/(loss) from discontinuing operations (after tax)
Profit{(loss} for the period

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or joss in
subsequent periods;

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax on ltem that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the period

E;cplana.tion for reconciliation of Balance sheet and Profit & Loss as

Note-1 Regrouping.
Note-2 Employee benefits:-Under previous GAAP, actuarial
Note-3 Lease effect and Right to Use of Assets.

Note -4 Loan processing fees: As per [GAAP loan processing fees are charged to profit and loss or capitalized in the period in which it is incurred.

Note-5 Provision for Expected Credit Loss.

Note-6- Due to Restatment and Deferced Tax on IND AS Adjustment,

Note-7- Other Comprhensive Income.

Notes
Previous GAAP Effect of tr:r:ition to Ind Ind AS
1.647.28 1,647.28
5.10 - 5.10
1,652.38 - 1,652.38
1 303.9%9 - 303.99
2 349,52 0.11 349.63
1 250.28 (250.28) -
34 116,68 4.52 121.20
3 12521 19.04 144.25
1,3,4,5 219.84 335.83 555.66
1 106.59 {106.59) -
1,472.10 2.64 1,474.74
180.28 (2.64) 177.64
180.28 - (2.64) 177.64
31.50 - 31.50
-6 {15.93} 18.18 225
& 9.66 10.80 20.46
155.05 (31.62) 123.43
155.05 (31.62) 123.43
155.05 {31.62) 123.42
155.05 (31.62) 123,43
7
- 0.02 0.02
- (0.01) {3.01)
185.05 {31.60} 123.45
previously reported under previous GAAP to Ind AS
gains and losses were recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind A3, the




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
[Formerly Known ax Yatharth Hospital & Truume Care Services Pvt. Ltd.)

(Re. Int Millions)

Note 33(iii) Reconeiliation of 'T‘atal_ﬁquity
As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

As at April 1,

2021 2020 2019 2018

Other eguity (shareholdet’s funds) under previous GAAP 555.09 400.04 352.08 319.39
Adjustment made for

Loan procession: Fees 1.77 2.18 2.44 2.08
Lease Liability Effect {7.36) {5.76) (2.04) 1.46
Provision for Retirement Benefits (0.49) [0.38} {0.27} [0.19
Pravision for Expected Credit Loss {17.12) f16.60) (13.69) {9.36)
Impact of Deferred Tax on Account of Restatment {4.64) T 7.33 2.70 5.90)
Impact of Deferred Tax on Account of IND AS 3.38 2.21 0.16 1.67
Effect of MAT Credit on restatment {0.88] 17.29 12.08 -
Acturia) Gain/Losses 0.02 0.00 0.03 -
Total adjustment . {25.33; 6.28 1.4} {10.23)
Other equity (shareholder's funds) under per IND AS 529,77 406.32 393,49 309.16

<thils space has been intentionally left blank>




Note 34{i} : Fair Value Measurement
Categories of financial instruments

{Rs. In Millions)

As at March 31, As at March As at March As at March 31, As at 1 Apri]
Financial assets 2022 31, 2021 31, 2020 2019 2018
Measured at amortized cost
(i) Trade receivables 763.34 316.72 167,85 119.27 86.73
{ii} Cash and Bank balance 14.90 6.29 12.84 2.70 57.01
{iii) Other Bank Balances 3.40 1.50 1.42 1.31 1.36
(iv} Other financial assets-non current .06 6.2] 5.00 4.69 14.57

790.71 330,73 187.11 127.97 159.67

Meaznred at Fair value
{nvestment other than
investment in subsidiaries ) ) )
Meagured st Cost
Investment in subsidiary 168.83 341.92 330.61 280.61 185.43

As at March 31, As at March As at March  As at March 31, As at ] April
Financial liabilities 2022 31, 2021 31, 2020 2019 2018 T
Measured at amortised cost
fi) Borrcwings 1,091.97 1,029.91 1,118.64 1,152.34 },084.56
(i} Other financial Nahilities 157.81 127.78 135.64 63.06 68.39
{ili) Lease Liabilities 55.85 73.02 90.46 107.12 -
{ivi Trade and other payables 160.90 128,28 121.60 12540 60.94
Total 1,466.53 1,358.99 1,466.34 1,478.42 1,213.89
(f) Fair Value Hierarchy
Fair value m ts
Particulars Fair value ag at Fair value Valuation

hierarchy technique(s)
and key
inputiz)
Ag at March 31, As at March 31, As at March As at March As at 1 April
2022 2021 31, 2020 31,2019 2018

Financial assets

Finanecial Liahilities

The fair values of current debtars, cash & bank balances, loan to related party,
and current borrowings and othel: firancial libility are assumed to approximat

these assets and ligbilities,

security deposit to goverment deparment, current creditors
¢ their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities of

Casrying value
As at March 31, As at March As at Murch  As at March 31, As at 1 April

Partioulars 2022 31, 2021 31, 2020 2019 2018 -
1) Financial aszets « Current
Trade receivables 763.34 316.72 167.85 119.27 86.73
Cash and cash equivalents 190 3.09 8.90 1.81 L.36
Bank Balances 12.50 3.20 394 0.89 55.65
Other Bank balances 3.40 1.50 1.42 1.31 1.36
ti) Financial labilities - Current
Trade payables 1560.90 128.28 121.60 125.40 60.94
Borrowing 391 .42 112.64 226.53 187.69 167.00
Lease Liabilities 19.12 18.26 17.44 16.66 -

101.71 71.68 9g.24 653.06 68.39

Other financial liabilities

lii} Valuation techniques uged to determine Fair value

The Company maintains policies and procedures to value finan
wailable, The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
ransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market parti

cial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data
included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
cipants at the measurement date.
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Note 34{l) : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s principal financial Liabilities other than deriva
financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations.

and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations,

tives comprise loans and borrowings trade and other payakles. The main purpose of these
The Company's principal financial assets include Lease Liabilities, loans trade and other receivables

The Company's firancial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company s exposed to market risk cradit
risk and tiguidity risk. The company’s focus is te foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial

pericrmance.

The Company’s principal linancial babilities comprise borrawings trade
for the Company’s operations. The Company principal financial asset

directly from its operations.

Tie Company's activities are exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows o a finan
comprise thres types of rigk;
affected by market risk incl

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective marleet risks,

{a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair valus or future cash flows
order to optimize the Company's pesition with regard to interest
comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by bata

(B}

{ct

portiolio.

(i) The exposure of group borrowings to interest rate <hanges at the end of reporting pericd are as follows {except for lease liabilities)

and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to manage Mnances
includes loan trade and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits that arise

cial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
currency rate risk interest rate risk and other price risks such as equity price risk end commodity price risk. Financial instruments
ude ioans and borrewings deposits investments and derivative financial Instruments.

-
of & linancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, In
income and interest expenses and to manage the interest rate risk treasury performs a
ncing the proportion of the fixed rate and floating rate (inancial instruments in its total

Ax at As at As at March 31 Az at 1 April
Particulars Marchk 31 2022 March 31 2021 2020 As at March 31 2019 2018
Variable rate borrowings 7915 868.31 894 87 968.35 957.78
Fired rate borrowings 1,012.83 161.60 22377 214 49 126.77
Total borxowlngs 1,091.97 1,029.9]1 1,118.64 I,182.84 1,084.56

(ii) As at the end of reporting period the company had the following variable rate borrowings and interest rate

Swap contracts outstanding:

As atMarch 31 2022

As at Maych 31 2021

Particulars Weighted average Balance % of total loans Weighted average Balance % of total loans
interest rate interest rate

Borrowings 6.70% 79.13 7.25% P1.40% 568,31 B84.31%

% of total ioans K B

et exposyure to Cach Now interest rate

rigk 79.15 868,31

As at Warch 31 2020 As at March 81 2019

Particulars Weighted average Balance % of total loans Weighted average Balance % of total loans
interest rate interost rate

Borrowings 12.32% - 89487 BO.00% 13.82% 968.25 81.8V%

% of total loans

NEet exposure To caEn LOW iNTerest race

risk 894.87 968.35

{ii?) Sensitivity

Profit/loss is sensitive to higher /lower interest axpense from borrowings as a resuit of changes in interest rates,

Impact on Profit before Tax for the FY ending

[Particulars
Incrense/ Decrease in Basin Points March 31 2022 March 31 2021 {March 31 2020 March 31 2019
IR +50 0.40 2.34 347 284
- 50 0.40) 4.34) 4.47) [4.54)
Foreign currency tisk

Foreign eurrsney rigk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company has no foreign cusrency loans in current year end and previous year . Therefore no sensitivity is provided.

Price Rizk

The company exposure to equity securities price risk arises from the investments held by
profit and loss. The company does not have any investments at the current year end and

provided,

company and classified in the balance sheet at fair value through

previous year which are held for trading. Therefore no ser}:s.ii_:ivity is

s



Credit risk

Cradit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obtigations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The company has
adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate as a means of mitigating the rigk of
financial loss from defaults. The company's credit risk £Xposure towards its counterpartits are continuously monitored . Cradit exposure of any party is

controlled reviewed and approved by the appointed company official in this regard.

Trade receivables may be analysed as follows:

N As ut Merch 31 As at March 31 Az pt March 31 As nt March 31
Age of receivables 2022 2021 2020 2019 Ag at 1 April 2018
Within the credit period "
1-180 days past due 60%.01 314.49 119,36 52.30 48.83
more than 180 days 205.03 19.36 65.09 30.65 47.25
Total 814.04 333.85 184.45 132.96 96.09
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that company will not be able to settle ar meet its obligation on tme or at a reasanable price. The Company’s objective is
to gt all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements, The Company's management is responsible for liquidity
funding as well as settlement management. In addition processes and policies refated to suck risk are overseen by senjor management. Managemnent
metitors the company’s net liquidity pasition through rolling forecast on the basis of expected cash Nows,

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial labilities at the reporting daie based on contractual
undiscounted payments:

Particulars Within I year 1.3 years More than 3 years Total Carrying amount
Az at March 31 2022
Borrowings 391.42 476.34 22421 1,001 97 1,091,97
Trade payables 160.90 - - 160.90 160.90
Lease Liabitities 19.12 36.74 - 55.85 55.85
Other financial Fabilities 10171 56.10 - i57.81 157 81
Total 673.15 569.18 224,21 1,466.53 1,466.53
Aw wt March 31 2021
Borrowings 112.64 917.27 - 1.029.91 1,029.9]
Trade payables 128.28 - - 128,28 128.28
Lease Liabilities 18.26 54.76 - 73.02 73.02
Other financial liabikities 71.68 56,10 - 127.78 12v.78
Total 330.86 1,028.13 - 1,358.99 1,358.99
AR at March 31 2020
Borrowings 236,5(? 586,49 26561 1118.64 1,118.64
Trade payables 121.60 - - i21.60 121.60
Lease Liabilities 17.44 57.39 15.63 9046 .46
Other inancial liabilities 98.24 37 40 - 135,64 135.64
Total 473.82 681.28 311.24 1,466,344 1,466.34
As ot March 31 2019
Botrrowings 187,69 553.01 440.15 1,182.84 1,182.84
Trade payables 125.40 - - 125.40 125,40
Lease Liabilities 16.66 54,82 35.64 107,12 107,12
Other financial liabilities £3.06 - - 63,06 63.06
Total 392,80 609,82 475.79 1,478.42 1,478.42
Ax at 1 April 2018
Borrowings 167.00 537.05 32050 1,084.56 1,084.56
Trade payables 60.94 - - 60.94 60,94
Lease Liabilities - - - B -
Other financiai liabilities 68.39 - - 68.39 68.39
296.33 537.05 380.50 1,213.89 1,213.89

Totak

Rl A

s




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
(Formerly Hnown ae Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Pvt. Ltd.)

35  Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, any company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit
for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility {CSR) activities. The Board of Directors of the Company has

approved the following expenditure on CSR activities.

For the year ended
31-March-2022

Particulars [Rs.)

~{iross amount required to be spent during the year as per
calculation specified for CSR activities

~Amount approved by the board to be spend during the year
-Amount spend during the period/ year

~Shortfall at the end of period fyear

~Reasons for Shortfall
»>For the year ended 31st March 2021

{R=. In Milllons}

For the year ended  For the yeur ended For the year exded

31-Mazch-2021 31-March-2020  31-March-2019
s} (Rs.} (Re.}

1.10 1.25 114

1.10 1.25 114

1.10 1.0g 0.80

0.00 0.25 0.34

The co. is obligated to spend the CSR amount in such way that it achieves its purpose of social upliftment, At
times identifying and then judiciously spending money may not be possibie in the given time frame. In such

cases the required unspent money is spent in the following year.

~Nature of CSR Activities

Amount during the year ended 31st March, 2022 & 31 March 2021 has been paid to charitable society which

works for health care of poor people.

*For the shortfall pertaining to 31 March, 2021 the company has deposited Rs. 0.002 Million to PM Cares

fund on 12/02/2022

The computation of CSR dues is based on the Profit and Loss, as made out on the basis of the already adopted

accounts for the preceding financial years.

Disclosure as required under Notification No. G.5.R.(E) dated 4th September, 2015 as updated vide notification dated 22nd January 2019 issued by

se the Ministry of Corporate Affairs w.r.t MSME (As certified by theManagement):

As per information available with the management, no supplier has declared MSME: status. As such, this disciesure is not applicable.

Asat March 31, ot Aprit 1, 2018

Az at March 31, N
Particulars 2022 As ot March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 2010
e} The principal amount and interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier- MSME.
~Principal 22.81 - - -

~Interest 0.18

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in

terms of Section 16 of the Micre Small and

Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 i}
{MSMED Act) along with the amounts of

payment made to the suppliers beyond the

appointed day during each accounting year.

b

The amount of interest due and payable for the
period of defay in making payment {which have
¢ been paid but beyond the appointed date -
during period) but without adding the interest
specified under the MSMED Act.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining

da} \ 0.18
unpaid.

The amount of further interest remaining due

and payable even in the succeeding period,

until such date when the interest dues ahove

are actually paid to the small enterprise for the -

purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED

Act,

-]

—




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formerly Knomit ax Yatharth Hoepital & Tranaws Cure Sarviom Prt, Lad.}

37, Borrowings
Detafls of borrowings availed by the compeny
. 1z Millions|
Bank/
T Category of Iotorast N . r faea Az at March 31 Afut March 31 Arat March 31, As 2t March 31 Aant April 1
B. Financiaf ¥ & O P Repryment Termus ' ' ' ' !
Fe Institntion Lann Rate 022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Hypethecation created on
- o N EM of Rs.
. hospital land & building siruated
1 i Hosng Termican  10.90% gt Plot Na- HO-O1, Sector- o051 payabie | 506.56 523.39 561.09 581.00
Omega- |, Greater noida Utear 2035 periad upto
Pradesh
Mz virum amaunt 07 $ during the perod/ pear {501.21) {546.01} 155117} (585.24)
The foan Ruas been takan over by Beats Bank of India against freah Tert Loan awrtied from them
Hypothecation treated on
LIC Housin, hospital Jand & building siruated EMI of Rs 71,623,757
2 Gianee uﬁs Term Loan 10:90%  at Plot No- NH-01, Sector-110  payable for the period . 361,85 271,48 407.26 576.78
Haiad and NE-32 Sector Omega  up to Oct -2025
1, Greater Naiad Uttar Pradesh
Madmum amoutl GBFs during the peviod) year (357.47) [387.73) 140380 (42480
Tha foan has been taken coer by Stats Bank af Indie againat fresh Term Loan quuiled from them
. Hypothecation created on EMI of Ba | 1,66,667
3 ;:n"lf Mahindra OMDE)”R“B LA 5 some personal properties of payable foz the period - 33,12 49.76 53,54 66.16
premotasts up to Dacember, 2022
Meoamum amount O s during the perisd/ year {30.06) [45.04) {51.87) &0_20)
Thiz Inan fas bean alased by making prepayment during the month of Harch, 2022
EMI of Re, 1,328,880
4 Indusind Bank W‘BO"I’;; OC  596% Unsecured Loan payahle for the petiod . 2.47 112 4.57 c.88
up te Decembar, 2022
Heeadmum amout OF 3 during the perfody year 12.18) 13.19) 1443} {475
This foan han been olosed by making pregagment diiring the montk of March, 2022
Hypothecation created on the Ewl of Rs. 6,67,195
8 Indusind Bank Equipmentloan 9.00%  assets purchased out of the payable for the periad 14.80 21.20 -
proceeds of the foan, up to March -2024
Maximien amount OF 2 diwing e period/ year . [20.73) [21.50) - -
Hypothecation created on the EMI of Bs, 4,90,637
6 Indusind Bank Equipment Loan  11.00%  assets purchased out of the payable for the pedod 927 14.09 15.98 -
. proceeds of the loan, up to December 22023 ’
Meximum amaunt /5 during the periody’ gear RERIT 116,70 (19,33 -
Hypothecation created on the EM! of Rs. 2,51,875
7 Indusind Bank Equipment Loan  11.00%  assets purchesed out of the payable far the perdod i.94 4.62 5.81 s - -
proceeds of the loan. up to December- 2022
Maxmiem emount O 3 duning the period/ year 4.4 16.08) 1769 -
. EMI of Rs. 14,02,580
i Hypothecation created on the R
g Foak Mahindra o et Loan  10.00%  masets purchased out of the payable for the period 523 20.91 29.55 42.41 .
Bank up to September,
proceeds of the loan,
2022
Maximum aotwnt O/ s during the peviody year {19.66) [29.56] 41,39 (5531}
. Hypothecation created on the EM! of Rs. 3,87.808
9 :::‘f Mahindra Equiptent Loan  }.00%  assets purchased out of the payable for the period - 2.61 5.28 7.73 -
proceeds of the loan, up to October, 2021
Macimum amount O's diving the period/ pear [2.24) 15.14) 15781 {1170
SREI . Hypothecation created on the EMI of R=. 9,37,000
o Eq‘;::‘ﬂ;l Equipment Loan  12.00%  assets purchascd out of the payable for the pericd 17.73 27.74 36.75 40.99 -
Finance ite proceeds of the loan, up to February -2024
Mavimum asmount Of 3 during the periad/ year [27.08) {37.200 {41.18) {41,953}
SREI . Hypothecation created on the EM gekzrl‘ifm
U SRE! Equipmer * Equipment Lo  12.00%  assets purchased out of e B et - 777 27.20 - -
e ite procesds of the loan, 2g‘ﬂl P
Afdmem amount OF $ dizing iha periady yaer {4.71) {25.09) [E1.92) . -
. Hypothecation created on the
! ??E’ Equipm: ™ Equipment Loan  12.00%  assets purchased out of the . . . 7.37 20.57
Hance © proceeds of the loan,
Maximum amount OF 3 duwring the period/ year - - - T4y
. . Hypothecation created on tha EM of Rs. 1,003,000
Punjab National o bl Loan  8.55%  aoets parchased out of the payabla for the period 423 - - - .
Bank prooteds of the loaz, up 16 April, 2026 -

s Mewdimem amount Of 8 during the perind/ year * [5.05] - -
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Axis Bank Ltd Vehicle Loan £.35%
Maxenum amounr O/3 during thu pariod/ year
Bank of Baroda  Vahicle Loan 7.45%

Maxdmum amount Of & during the perinds year

HDFC Bank .

Limited Yehielt Loan 8.00%
Maximum antount O s duning the paniod/ year

HOFC Banl .

Limited Vehicle Loan o, 10%
Maximim amotnt OF s during the period/ Fr.

HIFC Bank N

Limited Vehicle Loan 8.50%
Meamum amont O during the period/ vear

HDFC Bank -

Limited Vehicle Loan 19-00%

Maximym amount Oz during the pericd/ year

Bypathecation created on the
assets purchased out of the
proceeda of the lvan,

Hypothecation created on the
agsets purchased out of the
proceeds of the loan.

Hypothecation created on the
assets purchased aut of the
proceeds of the loan,

Hypothecation created on the
fasets purchased out of the
praceeds of the loan,

Hypothecation created en the
azsets purchased out of the
proceeds of the loan,

Hypeothecation created an the
assety purchased out of the
proceeds of the loan.

EMI of Rs. 183,993
payable for the period
up te September,
2025

EMI of Ra. 106,776
peyabla for the period
up to February, 2076

EM] of Rs. 1,61,000
payable for the period
up i October, 2022

EMI of Re, 48,307
payable for the period
up ¢ Octaber, 2024

EMI of Rs. 65,120
payable for the period
up toJune, 2023

EMI of Re. 31,810
payabie for the period
up to June, 2023

This loan hos been closed by making prepayment durlng the merth of December, 2021

UDFC Bank

Limited Vehicle Loan 10.00%

Maxinism amsunt Of s during the pericdd/ year

Hypothecation created on the
assets purchased cut of the
proceads of the loan.

Ebl of Re. 31,810
payable for the perod
up to Juite, 2023

This loan has beex closed by making prepagment during the manth of Decamber, 3021

HDFC Bank

i 00%
Limited Vehicle Loan 10

Marimum ameount O 5 during the periody yeor

HDFC Bank .
Limited Vehicle Loan 9.0044%

Metomum amount 073 diring the period; T

Hypothecation created on the
assets purchased out of the
proceeds of the loan.

Hypothecation created on the
aszets purchased ot of the
proceed s of the loan,

EMI of Rs. 26,485
payable for the period
up to Jupe 2023

EMI of Re. 81,625
payable for the peried
up te November -2022

This foun has been clozed by making prepoyment Hiring the month of Novemnber, 2021

HDFC Bank

Limited ¥ehicle Loan 10.25%%

Medmum amount Of s during the perind/ Year

HDFC Bank

Limited Vehicle Loan B.&0%

Maximium amount Of 5 during ihe pariod/ year

Hypothecation created on the
aseets purchased out of the
proceeds of the kean.

Hypothecation created on the
asgets purchased out of the
proceeda of the Joan.

EM! of Ra. 1,00,430
payable for the pariod
up to Feb -3015

EMI of Rz, 15,490
payable fer the period
up ta September, 2002

Thiz fean kas becn ofased by making prepayment diring he mawith q,l'ﬂm-mh_r. 2032

HDFC Bank

Limited Vehicle Loan 9.00%

Mavimien amgunt Of s durly the perisd/ peor

Hypothecation created on the
assels purchesed out of the
proceeds of the loan.

EMI of Ra. 17,020
payable for the period
up to January, 2022

Thia Ioar, has beer closed By makirg prepagmant during the month of December, 202}

HDFC Bank

Limited Vehick Loan

Maximum ameun Of's during the periody gear

Hypathecation created om the

8.60%  anseta purchased sut of the

proceeds of the loan,

EMt of Rs. 17,020
payable for the pericd
up to Januery, 2022

This foan has been clased by making prepayment during the month of Decemder, 2021

HDFC Bank
Limited
Moimum amoint OF 5 during the peripdy year

Vehicle Loan

TatnskacBank o ces Loan  14.00%
Amited

Maaimin, amount O 8 dyning the perind/ year

Hypotheeation created on the

960%  assets purchaged oot of the

proczeds of the loan,

Unsecursd Loan

Paid in full during FY
202021

EMI of Re. 1,36,711
Payable for the period
up ta April- 2022

™his loan has bean closed by making prepoynent during the month of Harch, 2022

N

6,66

[8.11)

4,23

{5.18)

1.33

1.73}

592

11.54}

0.72)

©.73

036

.61)

.51

10.25)

[0.14)

{9.15)

11.39)

k]

4.9

200

1.60

@17

074

10.93)

.74

[0.93)

0.6l

(.75

057

.29

0.3

10.40}

0.i5

19.31}

015

2.3

2.85)

{5.90

2.07

{2.32)

2.22

(2.74)

iL.15}

0.29

1-15)
9.72
115

1.22

11-98)

(0.55)

.20

0.46}

0.30

{0.46)

Q.22

(©.50)

295

8.02)

$.52

6,54

2,78

{a.14)

L7

{1.25)

{L.25)

117

(1.25)

205

{268

.05

{1.94§

0.56

10.68)

0.47

(0.62)

.47

(©.62)

0.53

e.21}

2.02

0.7

0.63

084
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Aditys Birla

: i 12.00%
Finance Limited Business Loan

Maxdmritn Aok ©F 3 during the period/ wear

Unsecured Loan

EMI of Bs. 1,50,960
payable for the period
up lo February, 2022

This ioan has beer closed by making prepayment during the monch of Pecember, 3031

Tata Capital

Finaneial

Services Limited
Maximum amount O 5 diring the perndf year

Business Lean  13.50%

ICIC Rank

Limited Buginess loan  11.30%

Muaximum amar CF s during the periedf year

Unsecured Loan

Unsecured Losn

EMI of Re. 2,358,883
peyable for the period
up to September,
2021

EMI of Rs. 87,365
payable for the peried
up to December, 2022

This foan hus beet closad by meking prepdyment during the month of March, 20232

Bajaj Finance
Limited

Maxdmam amaunt Of & duning the perody yedr

Business Loan  1$.00%

HDFC Bank Ltd  Buainess Loan 10.99%
Maximurn amolnt 5 g during the paniod/ gear

Capital First

Limited
Merxintm amount 3f 3 during the perind/ year

Business Loan  12.50%

Edelwiess Retail . L 6.00%
Finance Limited Busincss !

Maamum amonni O § diring the period/ year

Fulertsn India

Credit Co. Ltd Business Loan 12.49%:
Mot amotnl OF s during the peripd! peor
Docgiaj Business Loan  12.25%
Investments
Mavimum araount OF & during the perfody year
External
Kotak Mahindra . Bench
Bank Buginess Loan Mark+
Fvd i

Modmum amouhi $F 3 during e perid/ gear

State Bank of  Overdraflty Cagh
: 6.0
India Credit Faciliy

Maximem amount OF 8 during the period/ yaar

State Bank of Term loan 6.00%
[ndia

Mapdmum arotint Oy 5 during the periody year
State Bank of Term loan £.00%
Iadia

Maximuem amouni OF a during the periodf yaar
State Bank of Medical 6.00%
Todia Equipment Loan )

Moxirenm aount O a during the periasd/ year

Punfab Natonel Vehicle Loan 5.85%

Maximan amourt 07 2 diring the period/ year

Unsecured Loan

Unseccured Loan

Unzeeured Lean

Unsscured Loan

Unsecured Loan

Unsecured Loan

Secured Loan

Secured Loan

Secured Loan

Secured Loan

Secured Loan

Hypothecation created on the
asets purchased aut of the
proceeds of the loan.

Lean completely
repaid during FY 2020
21

Loan completely
repaid during FY 2020+
21

Loan completely
repaid during FY 2020
21

Loan completely
repaid during FY 2018
12

Lean completely
repaid during FY 20:20-
21

Loan completely
repaid during FY 2020.
24

EMI of Re. 12,07,018
payabla lor the period
up to January, 2029

EMI of R, 78,582,087
payable for the pericd
up o December, 2025

EMi of Rs.
1,09,98,265 payable
for the period up ta
December, 20625

Fotal facility availahle
s of Rs. 7 Crores but
till 31t March, 2022
lacility utilised for Ra.
4.67 Crores

EME of Rs. 2,980
payabls for the peried
up to November, 2028

{1.37]

(1-04)

11.66)

7RIS

£0.00

100,46

1100.46)

Jnos

[325 .40}

433.03

480.00

46.79

46.79)

0.63

(.66}

1.47

2.67

130

12.07)

2.60

290y

2.37

15.000

©.79)

3.08

12.76)

1.59

(3.885)

25.13

(25,13

{4.54)

4,90

5.0

3.26

[3.85)

.85

{1.43]

(.74

4.06

(5.00}

20.00

{20.004

.94

1.50

T O

6.87

0491
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Purjab Natonal

i _85%
Vehicle Loan £.8

Maxinuam amaunt O/ s during Ihe period/ yenr

Punjab Natonal Vehicle Loan &.85%

Maximum amount O/ 2 during the parind/’ year

Punjab Nadonal ol lomn  6.85%

Mexdmum amomt Of & during the perinds year

Punjab Nedonal Vehicle Loan &.85%

Moxdmum amoeunt O a during the perindy year

Punjab National

Bank Vehick: Loan 6.88%

Mzt amount OF's ding the pariody’ year

;‘;;“;" National =y idte Loan  6.85%

Maximum amoun! OFs during the perisdy year

Decpak Kamar g e toan 0.00%
Tyagi

Moedmum amaunt GF s during the pertod/ year

Vinod Tyagi Business Lean  D.00%

Maximum amewnt O s during e peniody year

Lal Chand Tyagi Business Loan  0.00%
Maximum amarnt OF 5 during the perindy” yenr
Dr. Ajay Kumar

Tyagi
Moxmim amourd s diing the periody year

Dr. Kepil Kamar
Medmum ameamt Of s during the peried/ year

Yatharth Tyagi
Maximum amaeent {7 8 during the periady yoar

Hypothecation created on the
agsets purchased out of the
proceeds of the loan.

Hypothecation created on the
assets purchased gut of the
provesd s of the loan,

Hypothecation created on the
asseis purchased out of the
proceeds of the loan,

Hyoothecation created on the
apsets purchased out of the
proceeds of the loan.

Hypothecation ereated on the
assets purchased cut of the
proceeds of the loan.

Hypethecztion created on the
asszets purchssed out of the
proceeds of the foan.

Unsecured Loan

Unsecured Lean

Unsecured Loan

Ungecured Loan

Unsecured Loan

Unaecured Loan

EM! of Ra. 9,980
payabis for the pericd
up to November, 2028

EME of R=, 9,980
payable for the period
up to November, 2028

EM! of Rs. 9,980
payable for the period
up to Novem ber, 2028

EMI of Rs. 9,980
payable for the period
up to November, 2025

EMl of R=. 32,000
payabls for the pered
up to February, 2022

EM! of Rz, 32,000
paysble far the peried
up ta February, 2029

Loan completely
repaid during FY 2020.
21

Loat completely
repaid during FY 2020
21 )

Loan compictzly
repaid during FY 2020
21

053

10.56)

0.63

0.53

(0.66)

0.62

2.65)

205

219

205

2.10)

870
@70)

10.44
(10.24)

32.50
{32.50)

0.50

f0.50)

0,50

(0.50}

0.40

{0409




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
{Farmerly Known as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Ceare Services Pvt. Ltd,)

37. Revenue from contracts with customers

Disapgregated revence information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Particulars For the year ended

For the year snded

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Income from medical and healthcare services
Revenue from hospital services 2,985.90 1,647.28 1,327.05 1,018.33
Location of revenue recognition 2,985.90 1,647.28 1,327.05 1,018.33

All the business operations of the company are in India.

Timing of revenue recognition

Particulars For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

3 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Services transferred at a point of time 366.39 284.01 276.19 206.08
‘Total revenue from contracts with customers 366.39 284.01 276.19 206.08

No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company's total revenue during the periads/years ended March, 2022 and 31 March 2021

Reconciliation of revenue recognised with the contracted price is as follows:

Particnlars For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Contracted price 3,200.87 1,783.52 1,478.03 1,103.15
Reduction towards variable consideration compenents®
Discounts (214.97) {136.25) (150.97) {84.82)
Revenue recognised 2,885.90 1,647.28 1,327.05 1,018.33
*Variable consideration components include discounts on the contract price.
Contract balances
Particulars As at As at As at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Trade receivables* B814.04 33385 184.45 132.96
Contract liabilities (advance from patients]# 6.39 5.27 1.23 7.80
Movement in contract lfabilities during the period/ yean:
Particulars Az at As at Az at As at

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the beginning of the period f year «5,27 1,23 V.50 . 3.08
Less: Revenue recognised from above (5.27) [1.23) {7,800,717.00) 3.084,042.00)
Add: Addition dunng the period/year 6.39 5.27 1.23 7.80
Balance af the end of the period/ year 6.39 5.27 {7,800,707.97) [3,084,031.12)

* Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days.

# Contract liabilities include advances received fram patients for hespital services pending final billing.

<this space has been intentionally left blank>




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formery Enown as Tatherth Hospital & Tranma Care Services Pyt Ltd.)

39, Related Party Transactions
#] Names of the related parties and description of relationship:

Key managerial personnel (KMP) Kuture of Relationship

1. Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi Chairman

2. Dr. Kapil Kumar ) Managing Director

3. Dr. Neena Tyagi Directer {upto 31.08.2021)

4. Dr, Manju Tyagi Director jupte 31.08.2021)

5. Mr. Yatharth Tyagi Director fw.¢.l. 15.00.2021)

6. Br. Sanjeev Upadhyaya Independent Director {w.e.f 21.02.2022)
7. Mr. Mukesh Sharma Independent Directer {w.e.l. 21.02.2022)
8. Dr. [Ia Patnafk Independent Director (from 21.02.2022 to 02.08.2022)
9. Mr Ritesh Mishra, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
10. Mr, Amit Kumar Singh Chief Executive Officer fw.e.f. 15.09.2021)
11. Mr. Pankaj Prabhalkar Chiel Financial Gificer (w.e.l[. 21.02.2027)
Relative of key maoagerial p 1

1. Mr. Sanskar Tyagi
2. Mr. Lal Chand Tyagi

Enterprise exercising significant influence on the Compapy
il

Subsidiary Companies
1. AKS Medical & Research Private Limited (AKS)

2, Sanskar Medica India Limited
3. Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Private Limited (w.e.f 18.02.2022)

Enterprises where key managerial personnel along with their relatives exercise significant influence
No such enterprise

{b) Following ix the v of algnificant related party transactions during the year:

For the year ended  For the year ended  For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 3] March 2019

Remuneration to KMPs & Relatives of KMPx
Dr. Afay Kumar Tyag{ 12.00 720 7.20 7.20
Dr. Kapil Kumar 12.00 7.20 720 7.20
Dr. Marju Tyagi 5.00 7.20 7.20 720
Dr. Neena Tyagi 5.00 T.20 720 7.20
Mr. Yatharth Tyagi 7.00 4.BC 3.60 1.00
Mz, Sanskar Tyagl - 060 - -
Mr. Ritesh Mishra- Company Sceretary 0.78 0.6 0.66 0.39
Mr. Amit Kumar Singh 1.32 - - -
M. Parkaj Prabhakar D48 - - -
Rent paid to KMP
Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi - 0.84 0.60 0.60
Dr. Kapil Kumar - 0.64 Q.60 0.60
Dr, Manju Tyagi - 0.42 0.30 0.30
Dr. Neena Tyagi - 042 0.30 0.3G
Director sitting feesz paid
Mr. Mukeshk Sharma 0.18 - - -
Dr. lla Patmaik 0.18 - - -
Service Charges received from Subsidiary Company

- 15591 - -

Diagnostic charges




Investment {n Equity Sharea

AKS Medical & Research Centre Private Limited

Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Private Limited
Purchase of Equity shares of (AKS) Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi
Purchase of Equity shares of [AKS) Dr. Kapil Kumar

Sanskar Medica India Limited

Loans und Advances- Subsidlary Company

AKE Madical & Research Prvate Limited
Loans and Advances- Received
Loans and Advances- Paid Back

Loansg and Advances- Given
Loans and Advances- Received Back

Sanskar Medica India Limited
Loans and Advances- Received
Loans and Advances- Paid Back

Loans and Advances- Given
Loans and Advances- Recelved Back

Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Private Limited
Loats and Advances- Received
Loans and Advances- Paid Back

Loans and Advances- Given
Loans and Advances- Recelved Back

Loans awd Advapnces received fram KMP's & Felatives of KMPs
Dr. Ajay Kumar Tyagi

Dr. Kapil Kumar

Yatherth Tyagi

Mr. Lal Chand Tyagi*

*Loan wag taken in FY 2019-20 and negative figure denotes repayment of the same,

37.71
56,64
32.56

633.53
503.44

268.34

8.70
10.44
32.50

33185
331.85

86.58
86.58

18.70

tD-_4D}

56.88
56.88

71.48
71.48

37.40

0.40 -

57.79

38.36

80.65
60.65

12.87
12.87

¢} The Company has the following amounts due from/ to the related parties:
Ax on 31 March 2022 As on 31 March 2021 As on 31 March 2020

As on 31 March

2019

As on 1st
April, 2018

Borrowings (Current)

AKS Medical & Research Centre Private Limited
Sanskar Medica India Limited .

Mr. Lal Chand Tyagi

Mr. Vinod Tyagi

Mr. Deepak Kumar Tyagi -

Amount Receivable
Sanskar Medica India Limited
Ramraja Multispeciality Hospital & Trauma Centre Privale Limited

Remuneration payable to KMP

D, Ajay Kumar Tyagi

Cr. Kapil Kumar

Mr. Yatharth Tyagi

Mr. Ritesh Mishra- Company Secretary
Mr. Amit Kumar Singh

Mr. Pankaj Prabhakar

Director sitting fees payable
Mr. Mukesh Sharma
br. Na Patnaik

130.09
36.10

1.06
268.34

0.73
1.39
.16
0.06

Q.05

0,32
0.12

37.40
0.40

0.50

1.06

1 All transactions with these related parties are at arm's length basis and resulting outstanding receivables and payabies including financial assets and Fnancial Habilites
salances are settled in cash. Nene of the balances are secured. (Al the amounts of transactions and balances disclosed in this hote are gross and undiscounted.}




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED

{ rly Known aa

Note 40: Employee benefit plans

The employec benefit schemes are us under:
Defined Retirentent Plans

(1) Provident Fund

The benelit of Frovident Fund is extended to all such eligible emplayees,

harth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Prt. Lid.)

as is defined under the relevant regulations under the applicable the provisions of Provident Fund Act and the

Rules. Amount debited to Profit and Loss account including Administrative and Employees Depoesit Linked Insurance charges Rs, 0.74 during the period (2020-21 - Rs .29, 2018-2020-

Rs. 0.36 & 2018-19- Rs. 0.50].

{2} Gratuity

Gratuity - The Hability for Cratuity is provided on the basis of Actuarfal Valuation made at the end of each financial year. The Actuarial Valuation is made on Projected Unit Credit

method as per Ind AS 19,

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

¥or the period ended For the period ended  For the period ended  For the period ended 01.04.2018
’ 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Marck 2012
Opening deilned benefit obligation 0.46 0.37 .23 .19 -
Current service cost 11.29 0.09 0.09 0.07 .19
Interest Cost 0.03 0.02 .02 001 -
Actuarial (gain]/loss (2.77] 10.02) 0.04 ¢.04) -
Benefits paid ) - - - - -
Beunefit obligation at the end of the period/year 8.00 0.46 .37 .23 0.12
Provision [Current) Refer Nate No.-23 0.04 006 .04 400 000
Provision [Non- Current] Refer Note No.-17 7.97 0.41 0.33 0.23 o.18
Gratulty expense gnised in the t of profit and loss
For the period ended For the period ended  For the period ended  For the period ended 01.04.2018
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 Marchk 2019
Current service cost 11.29 0.09 0.09 a7 C.19
Interest on defined beneht obligation 0.03 0.02 Q.02 0.01 -
Net actuarial [gain]/loss recognised in tie periodfyear - - - - -
Net gratuity expenses 11,32 0.11 .11 4.09 0.19
Re-messnrentents recoguised in other comprehensive income
For the period ended Fot the period ended  For the period ended  For the period ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Aciuarial fgain)/1oss on defined benefit obligation {3.77) [@.02) 0.04 {0.04) -
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - - - - .
Actuarial [gain}/loss gnized in other prehensive L [3.77} 0.02) 0.04 £0.04) -
S ¥ ol ial ptions
Financiul ptl ut bhal sheet data: .
For the petiod ended For the period ended  For the perlod ended  For the period ended 01.04.2018
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Discount rate 8.75 6.43 6.50 743 7.69
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 7.0% 7.00% T.00% TO0%
Atirition rate
Age 15 10 3D 13.00% 10.00% 10.80% 10.00% 10.00%
Age 30 to 45 13.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Above 45 Years E3.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement Age &0 Years 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
For the period ended For the period ended  For the period ended  For the period ended 01.04.2018
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
st following year 0.04 0.06 0.04 0.00 0.00
Year2to & 1.81 0.32 0.30 0.21 0.17
6.07 0.41 0.42 0.38 0.42

Year & to 10




Discount rate: The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities a3 at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.
Salary Intion rate: The estl of luture salary increases considerzd takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

Sensitlvity rnalysis: Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, helding other assumptions constant would have affected the

defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

As at 31zt March, 2022

As at 3Lst March, 2021

As at 3}st March, 2020

Increzse Decrease Incrense Becrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (100 bps movement) v.28 8.84 0.04 0.04 ¢.03 0.04
Saiary escalation rate {100 bps movement) 8.85 7.26 Q.04 0.04 0.04 0.03
As at 31st March, 2019 As at 1st April, 2013
Encrease Decreass Increass Decreaze
Discount rate {100 bps movement] 0.02 0.02 c02 0.02
Salary escalation rate {100 bps movement} .02 .02 0.02 0.02

Expected contributions to the plan for the next naual reporting period
. For the perfod anded

31 March 2022 -

Fer the period anded
31 March 2021

For the period ended
31 March 2020

For the period ended 01,04.2018
31 March 2019

Expected contributions to the plan for the next
annual reporting period -




Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited
{Formerly known as Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Private Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements

41.a} Contingent liabilities

Particulars As on 31st As on 31 As on 31 As on 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021 March, March,
2020 2019

Bank 11.89 6.21 5.00 2.17

Guarantees

Margin 6.16 - 2.24 2.24 2.52

Money

against above

Corporate 1390.60 865.00 865.00 -

Guarantee

Outstanding 1154.10 819.34 713.48 -

against  the

above

b} Claim against the company not acknowledged as debts
i.  The company had been served a Show Cause Notice u/s 279(1) and 276B of
the Income Tax Act, 1961 that the company has defaulted in the payment of
TDS as under: .

s Amount of tax deposited after the due Interest u/
N ) Financial Year date, as per rule 30 of the Income Tax 20151 Au S
. - Act, 1961 1l
I 5012-13 3.27 0.35
) 2013-14 7.12 0.87
3 2014-15 10.62 1.51
4 2016-17 14.39 1.27

The company has already paid the delayed principal amount of TDS and the interest
amount thereon. Though the due principal amount of TDS and the interest has been
paid, the matter is yet to be closed by the Income Tax Department,

ii. The company has been served a notice under section 17 of The Consumer
Protection Act, 1986, wherein the following amounts have been demanded by

the counter party




Particulars 31* March, | 31=t March, |31 March, | 31+ March, | Ol1s April, |
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Cost of | 2.28 2.28 2.28 2.28
Medical along with | along with | along with along  with
Treatment interest from interest, from | interest interest from -
23.02.2018 23.02.2018 from 23.02.2018
and pendente | and pendente | 23.02.2018 | and pendente
lite interest | lite interest | and lite  interest
thereto thereto pendente thereto
lite interest
thereto
Towards agony 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 -
and
harassment
| suffered

Note:- For all the contingent liabilities mentioned hereinabove, the Company believes that it is
not liable to pay any amount and has not provided any sum for these liabilities in its books of
accounts. The Company is dealing with these cases at appropriate legal forum

hod

Events occurring after Balance Sheet Date
a) With reference to note 41.b.i, the proceedings initiated under section 279(1) and
276B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 have been dropped at no cost on the company.

b} The company had filed Draft Red Herring Prospectus {DRHP) with SEBI on 31st
March, 2022 for the fresh issue of capital amounting to Rs. 6,100 Million and Offer
for Sale (OFS) of 6,551,690 equity shares. Based on submissions made in the DRHP
and other clarifications provided by the company, SEBI has issued The Observation
Letter on 02 August, 2022, enabling the company to proceed further for the issue of
fresh capital and OFS.

43. There is no impairment loss on fixed assets on the basis of review carried out by the
management in accordance with IND AS 36,

44. Balances of certain trade receivables, loans & advances, advances received from
customers and trade payables  are subject to confirmation, if any. The
management does not expect any material difference affecting the financial
statements on such adjustments.

45. Covid 19 business and government guidelines

During the financial year 2021-22 & 2020-21 the company had admitted and treated
covid 19 infected patients. There has been government guidelines related to the




46.

47.

treatment and the cost of treatment of Covid 19 Patients. The Company has followed
all such guidelines.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo
During the financial year 2021-2022, 2020-2021 and
earning or outgo in foreign exchange.

2019-2020 there has beeln no

Covid 19 and grant for moratorium to pay principal and interest on outstanding
loan

During the financial year 2019-2020 and 2020-2021, Covid 19 affected the overall
business cycle of the economy. To address to the liquidity concern of the businesses,
the Reverse Bank of India wide its circulars; DOR.NO.BP.BC.47/ 21.04.048/2019-20
March 27, 2020, Circular DOR.No,BP.BC.63/21.04.048 /2019-20 April 17, 2020,
DOR. No.BP.BC.?IfQI.04.048/2019-20 May 23, 2020, allowed the moratorium to
pay the due principal and *interest on outstanding loans. The Company availed the
benefits of given moratorium to the extent of Rs.120.73 Millions (inclusive of
principal and interest). The amount covered under the moratorium shall be paid by
extending the overall term of the respective loan account,

Details related to borrowings secured against current assets:

The company has given current assets (trade receivables and inventories) as security
for working capital (fund and non fund based limits) obtained from State Bank Of
India. This is applicable for year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. The
Company submitted the required information with the bank and the required
reconciliation is presented below: :

48,

For the period ending March 31st 2022

Nature of current Amount 520:;1:1{&:

assets offered as Quarter disclosed as | P of Variance | Remarks
security per statement accounts

g-l:g:: 22;5‘::11;1(;3 Q1 FY 2021-22 NA NA NA

:rr-l;g? ﬁfﬁiﬁéﬁs Q2 FY 2021-22 NA NA NA

Inventories and

trade receivables Q3 FY 2021-22 NA NA NA
ii":éi’?iif:i:ﬂis Q4 FY 2021-22 837.56 837.56 Nil




For the period ending March 31% 2021

Nature of current Amount as Amt:,uni;::s
assets offered as Quarter per books of p:r o0 Variance | Remarks
security accounts o
accounts
Inventories and
trade receivables Q1 FY 2020-21 _ NA NA NA
Inventories and
trade receivables Q2 FY 2020-21 | NA NA NA
Inventories and
trade receivables (@3 FY 2020-21 { NA NA NA
Inventories and
trade receivables Q4 FY 2020-21 [ NA NA NA
For the period ending March 31st 2020
Nature of current Amount Al;_o::t;:
assets offered as Quarter disclosed as P ofo Variance | Remarks
security per statement
accounts

Inventories and trade Q1 FY :
receivables 2019-20 NA NA NA
Inventories and trade Q2 FY -
receivables 2019-20 NA NA NA
Inventories and trade Q3 FY
receivables 2019-20 NA NA NA
Inventories and trade Q4 FY
receivables 2019-20 NA NA NA
For the period ending March 31st 2019
Nature of current Amount Ar;‘o:;::ka:
assets offered as Quarter disclosed as P of Variance | Remarks
security per statement accounts
Inventories and trade Q1FY '
receivables 2018-19 NA NA NA
Inventories and trade Q2 FY :
receivables 2018-19 NA NA NA
Inventories and trade QS FY
receivables 2018-19 NA NA NA
Inventories and trade Q4 FY
receivables 2018-19 ) NA NA NA

\.S‘O -




49.

Income Tax

The major compenents of income tax expenses are as follows

Particulars Financial Year | Financial Year Financial Year Financial
: 2021-22 2020-21 2019-21 Year 2018-19
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax:
Current Income Tax 173.53 31.50 5.22 12.08
Income Tax of Earlier - - - -
Years
MAT Credit 15.04 2.25 (5.22) {12.08)
entitlement/ reversed
Deferred Tax (6.26}) 20.46 8.97 10.40
Total 182.32 54.21 8.97 10.40 |
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting
profit/(loss)as follows:
Financial | Financial | Financial Financial
. Year Year Year Year
Particulars 2021-22 | 2020-21 | 2019-20 | 2018-19
Profit / (Loss) before tax as per Statement . 21.83 51.30
of Profit and Loss 603.19 177.64 ) S
Enacted tax Rate 29.12% 29.12% | 27.82% | 27.82%
Income tax using the Company’s domestic 175.65 51.73 6.07 14.27
tax rate
Tax Effect of:
Timing Difference- Deferred Tax (6.26) 20.46 8.97 10.40
Permanent Difference | 188.58 33.75 - -
Total Income Tax exXpenses recognized in
profit and Loss account 182.32 >4.21 8.97 10.40
Effective Tax Rate (%) 30.23% | 30.52% | 41.11% | 20.27%




YATHARTH HOSPITAL & TRAUMA CARE SERVICES LIMITED
{Formesly Known as Yatherth Hospital & Tranmae Care Sarvices Pyt. Ld.)
Kotes To Standal Fi inl Stat *

50, Ratlos as per Scheduls Il requirement

202122 2020-21 201920 18-1
Current Ratla

Numerator Current Assets 1,108.49 390.98 262.28 182.35
Denominator Current Liabilities 890.78 353.08 518.45 42103
Ratlo 1.24 1.11 0.51 0.43
%Change 12.38% 118.89% 16.80%

Reason for change :- Year 2020-21- The reduction In curreat maturities reduced the curent Liabitities and thus improving the current ratio,

Dabt Equity Ratio

Numerator Long Term Berrowings + Short Term Borrowirngs 109197 1.029.91 1,118.64 1,182.84
Denominator Shareholders Funds Lil17.11 693.56 570.0% 557.20
Ratio 0.98 1.48 1.96 2.12
%eChangs -34.1T% -24.32% -7.56%

Reason for change - Year 2021-22 The Compauy has reduced the loan exposure end the profitability position has improved during the year,

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Numerator EBIDTA 854.46 443,09 330.43 198.02
Denominator Principal repayments of Long term borrowings & Inferes 392.00 112,64 236,53 187.69
Ratio 2,18 3.93 1.40 1.06
%Change “44.59% 182.59% 32.41%

Resson for change :-a) Year 2019-20 & 2020-21-The EBIDTA is improviag over the last year and thus providing hetter cover to pu)lr the due Interest and

principa] during the year
b|Year 2021-2022- The ERIDTA has itnproved over the Inst ¥enr, But at the zame time the Company decided to swap the costhier loan with cheapar lozn,

increasing fn the privcipal payout and thus decreasiog the over sl DSCR caver

Return on Equity/ Investment Ratio

Numerator Met Profit after Taxes 42355 123.45 12.83 40.93
Denominator Sharcholder's Equity 1,117.11 £93 .56 570.11 857.29
Ratlo 37.91% 17.80% 2.25% 7.35%
%Change 113.02% 691.11% -69.37%

Reamon for change:- 2 Year 2019-20- The incubation nXpenses of new hospital at Grester Noida led to inerense in expenses and thus reduction of
prefitability even at higher amount of gale

b} Year 2020-21 8 2021-22-With better revenue and profitabili¢y, the sharehold equity is § Ing oo Yo¥ basis

laveatory Turnover Ratio

Mumerator Sales 2,985.90 1,647.28 1,327.05 LG15.33
Denominatar Average Inventory 25.45 26,58 24.19 21.46
Ratio 11731 631.99 24.87 47.45
%Change B9.26%, 12.98% 15.62%

Reuson for change ;- Year 2021-22- With almost same levels of inventory, better sale has been achieved and thus iccreasing the wtilization of availabhle
inveutory

Trade Recelvables Turnover Ratlo

Numerator Net Credit Sales 2,98590 1,647.28 1,327.05 1L018.33
Denominator Avg Accounts Receivable 540.03 242.29 143,56 143.00
Ratio 5.53 6.80 9.24 9.89
%Change -18.658% -26.45% -5.50%

Reason for change :- Year 2020-2]- Purtialfy because of (:Eav-ld-lg, the quantum of trade receivable viz & vis sale, Increased

Tride Payables Turnover Ratio

Numerater Net Credit Purchases 501,55 303.09 252,38 194,86
Deénominator Avg Trade Payables 144.59 i24.94 123.50 93.17
Ratie 4.09 2.43 2.04 2.09
%Change 68.15% 19.06% -2.29%

Beagou for change :- Year 2021.22- With better EBIDTA and liguidity, Company is paying {ts vendors at fanter jpace

Net Capital Taruover Ratio

Numerator Net Sales 2,985.90 1.647,28 1,327.05 1,018.33
Denominator Working Capital {Current Assets- Current Liahilities) 21771 37.90 {256.18) (238.68}
Ratio 13.71 43.46 i, 18} [4.27)
SChange -68.44% -939.01% 21.42%

Reason for change:- Year 2020-21 & 2021.22 .Tha Company is improving {ts working capital to net positive and bring to better operational efficiencies




Net Profit Ratio

Nuimerator Net Profit 423,55 123.45 12.83 40.63
Denominator Met Sales 2,985.50 1,647.28 1,327.05 1.018,33
Rutio 14.18% 7.49% 9.97% 4.02%
%Chagge 49.28% 675,33% -75.95%

Reason for change :- 2) Year 2019-20-Due to higher fncabation expebses for starting a new hospital, the profitability, in-spite of higher sale got rednced
b) Year 202021 & 2021-22-Better EBIDTA margioz are leading to better profitabitity

Return on Capital Bmployed

Numerator Earning before Interest and Taxes T04.33 298,69 160.30 114.21
Dencminator Capital Employed 2,258.53 1,763.04 1,705.60 1.,753.23
Ratle 31.19% 16.94% 9.40% 6.51%
YChanpe 84.07% 80.27% 44.27%

Reaszon for change:- For 2l years -Higher szle aud with better EBIDTA margins, the EBIT s increasing Yov

<this space has besn intentionafly left blank>




S1. Other Statutory Information

aj The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

b) The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies,

¢) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered
with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

d) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during
the year ended 31st March, 2022, March 31, 2021, March 31, 2020 and 3] March,

2019.

€) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or
entityfies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall: .

i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

i. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

g) The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax

h) The company is in compliance with the requirements of layers of companies.

Name of the company has been changed form Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services
Private Limited to Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited

52. Name of the company has been changed form Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care
Services Private Limited to Yatharth Hospital & Trauma Care Services Limited.

53. The figures have been regrouped /reclassified and restated as per INDAS requirements.




54. These Financial Statements were approved by Board in its Meeting held on
04.08.2022 at Noida.

As per our report of even date attached, .

For R, Nagpal Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

__ - W
_____ & XT A

Dr Ajay Kumar Tyagi Dr.
Partner Director - Director
Membership No.: 093910 DIN:01792886 DIN:01818736

Place: Noida
Dated: 04/08/2022

Ray

Ritesh Mishra Pankaj Prabhakar
Co. Secretary & Compliance Officer CFO
M. No 51166 AGFPP2937A



